

ALPINE MULTIMEDIA SYSTEM



User precautions

It is essential to follow the precautions below when using the system, both in the interest of safety and to prevent material damage. Always comply with the laws of the country in which you are travelling.



Precautions when operating the system

- Operate the controls and read the information on the screen only when road conditions allow.
- Set the volume to a reasonable level so that outside noise can be heard.

Precautions regarding navigation

- Use of the navigation system does not in any way replace the responsibility or vigilance of the driver when driving the vehicle.

- Depending on the geographical area, the map may not have the latest information on new roads. Be alert. In all cases, Road Traffic Regulations and road signs always take precedence over the directions of the navigation system.

Precautions concerning material damage

- Do not attempt to dismantle or modify the system to avoid any risk of fire or damage to equipment.
- Contact a representative of the manufacturer in the event of malfunction and for all operations involving disassembly.
- Do not insert foreign objects or a damaged or dirty external storage device (USB key, SD card etc.) into the reader.
- Use an external storage device (USB flash drive, Jack socket etc.) that is compatible with your system.
- Always clean your screen with a microfibre cloth.
- Do not use products containing alcohol and/or spray fluids on the area.



The prior acceptance of the General Conditions of Sale is mandatory before using the system. The description of the models given in this manual is based on the specifications at the time of writing.

Depending on the make and model of your telephone, some functions may be partially or completely incompatible with your vehicle's multimedia system.

For further information, please contact an approved dealer.



Protection of your personal data

Data from your vehicle is processed by the manufacturer, by Google[®], by approved distributors and other entities in the manufacturer's group. The manufacturer's details are available on their website and on the last page of the vehicle user manual.

Your personal data is processed for the following purposes:

- to allow you to benefit from your vehicle's on-board services and applications;
- to enable the operation and maintenance of your vehicle;
- to improve the driver experience and develop the products and services of the manufacturer's group;
- Enforce the legal obligations of the manufacturer's group.

In accordance with the regulations applicable to you, particularly if you are located in Europe, you can ask to:

- obtain and check the data that the manufacturer holds concerning you;
- correct any inaccurate information;
- remove data concerning you;
- take a copy of your data to reuse it elsewhere;
- oppose the use of your data at any time;
- freeze the use of your data.

From your vehicle's multimedia screen, you can:

- refuse to give your consent to the sharing of your personal data (including location);
- withdraw your consent at any time.

If you decide to suspend the sharing of your personal data, some of the vehicle's functions and/or services supplied by the manufacturer will be stopped as they require your consent.



Protection of your personal data

Regardless of whether or not you decide to suspend sharing, the vehicle usage data will be forwarded to the manufacturer and the partners/subsidiaries concerned for the following purposes:

- to enable the operation and maintenance of your vehicle;

- improve the life cycle of your vehicle.

The purpose of using this data is not commercial canvassing but rather the continuous improvement of the manufacturer's vehicles and the prevention of problems that may hinder their daily operation. For more information, the data protection policy is available on the manufacturer's website, for which the address is available in the vehicle user manual.

D This manual covers all existing functions for the models described. Whether or not they are fitted depends on the equipment model, options selected and the country where they are sold. This manual may also contain information about functions to be introduced later in the model year. The screens shown in the user manual are not contractual.

→ anywhere in the manual indicates a transfer to a page.

CONTENTS

General information	5
General description	5
Introduction to the controls	8
Activating services	10
operating principles	14
Cleaning	17
Switching on, off	18
Add, manage widgets	19
Using voice recognition	21
Navigation	27
Мар	27
Enter a destination	
Navigation settings	
Audio/Multimedia	44
Audio sources	
Listen to the radio	
Music	50
Audio settings	53
Phone	55
Pair and connect a phone	55
Call management	
SMS	64
Phone Settings	
Wireless charger	67
Apps	69
Android Auto™, CarPlay™	
App management	73
My Alpine	75
Vehicle loaning and relinquishing	77
Vehicle	

	Driving aids	78
	Parking aids	83
	Reversing camera	
	DRIVE MODE	87
	Ambient lighting	90
	Alpine Telemetrics	91
	Tyre pressure	94
	My driving	95
	Air quality	97
	Electric vehicle	
	Emergency call	103
Sett	ings	104
	User settings	104
	System settings	108
	Notifications	111
	Update	113
	Operating faults	116

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Screen

For further information on the heating level, please refer to your vehicle user manual.



- A. Access and status bar.
- **B.** Access to different Worlds.
- C. Display area for selected World.
- D. Heating level bar indicator.



1. Status of the connection and sharing of data;

- 2. Phone battery charge level.
- 3. Phone reception status.
- *4.* Bluetooth[®] of the activated multimedia system.
- 5. Multimedia system WIFI status.
- 6. Status of the wireless charger.

7. Access to the notification centre.

- 8. Microphone status and control.
- 9. Exterior temperature.
- 10. Time.
- 11. Heating temperature indicator.
- 12. Ventilation speed indicator.

13. Air conditioning control.

14. Heated driver seat control.

15. Heated passenger seat control.

16. Heated steering wheel control.

17. Windscreen de-icing/demisting warning light.

18. Passenger compartment air distribution indicator.

Worlds' Screens

Your system is made up of several Worlds **B**:



- « Vehicle »

Note: the availability of Worlds depends on the equipment.

You can access the various Worlds at any time from the Worlds bar **B**

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

1

which is visible and accessible at all times on the active screen.

"Navigation" World



"Audio" World



"Phone" World



The "Navigation" World , which can be accessed using button **19**, enables you to access the navigation system. It is possible to display two customisable widgets. The "Audio" World **D**, which can be accessed using button **20**, can be used to access the radio and the music. The "Phone" World , which can be accessed using button 21, enables you to access calls, folders and other telephone functions connected to the multimedia system.

Note: the "Phone" World icon **May change while smartphone**

replication is in progress



GENERAL DESCRIPTION

"Applications" World



The "Applications" World , which can be accessed using button **22**, can be used to access applications from the multimedia system. "Vehicle" World



The "Vehicle" World A which can be accessed using the button 23, can be used to manage some vehicle equipment such as the driving aids, the Alpine Telemetrics, etc. and to adjust some multimedia system settings such as the display, language, etc.

Note:

- depending on the equipment level, only available functions that can be selected appear on the home screen;

- you can also access the various modes by pressing your vehicle's "Drive Mode" control repeatedly.

Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information.

Notification centre

-4	0.	*			10℃ 11:1 ම
	- Lumi	☆ +4 inosité de jo	+ ur		Pa Parking mains libres
Récen	tes			B	
				9	
D	ébogage ppuyez poc	USB activé ur désactiver	le débogage US	8	
20%	\$27))	1 Put	23

The notification centre E, which can be accessed using button 7, or by quickly swiping the multimedia screen from zone A towards the centre of the screen, enables you to access the notifications, "Profile" and some functions. To exit the notification centre, press 7 or swipe up quickly from zone D towards the centre of the screen.

INTRODUCTION TO THE CONTROLS



Function
Multimedia screen.
Volume up.
Briefly press: "Radio - Music OFF"/"Radio - Music ON", "Minimal display", "Cleaning screen ", "Stand-by".
Press and hold (around five seconds): force the multime- dia system to shut down.
Volume down.

Steering column controls G SOURCE MODE Function 5 Choosing the audio source. Browse the radio stations or audio tracks and directories 6 (depending on the equipment). Briefly press: - increase the volume of the source currently in use. Press and hold (around 10 7 seconds): - deactivate the forced muting of audio.

	Function
	Briefly press:
	- mute/unmute the radio au-
	- pause or play the audio
7 + 8	frack; - interrupt the voice recogni- tion voice synthesizer.
-	Press and hold (around 10 seconds):
	- deactivate the forced mut- ing of audio.
	Briefly press:
	 decrease the volume of the source currently in use.
8	Press and hold (around 5 sec- onds):
	- activate the forced muting of audio.
9	Change the playback mode for the radio stations ("List", "Favourites").

INTRODUCTION TO THE CONTROLS

Steering column controls



Function

If the telephone is not connected to the multimedia system:

- access the phone pairing function (available if the vehicle is stationary).

If the telephone is connected to the multimedia system:

- access the "Phone" World;



- answer/end a call.

11 Briefly press:

10

	Function	
	- activate/deactivate the "Google Assistant" voice recognition on your multime- dia system.	1.
	Press and hold: - activate/deactivate your phone's voice recognition (only available when your phone is connected to the multimedia system via phone replication).	
12	Briefly press: - scrolling and mode selec- tion DRIVE MODE. Press and hold: - access the configuration of the DRIVE MODE mode in use. For further information, please refer to the "Drive Mode, → 87 " section.	
13	Briefly press: – use the "Favourites" func- tion. Press and hold: – access the "Favourites" function selection configura- tion.	

FunctionFor further information,
please refer to the "User set-
tings"> 104 section.Selection of the view dis-
played on the instrument
panel among those available
(e.g. navigation on the in-
strument panel).

Introduction

Once the services have been activated, they will be free to use during a limited period starting from vour vehicle deliverv date.

The multimedia system offers to configure your profile in a few steps.

Note:

- the configuration wizard offers assistance each time a profile is created:

- the configuration wizard can only be used while the vehicle is stationary.

Configuration assistant



The manufacturer shall take all necessary precautions to ensure a level of safety appropriate to the risks, taking into account the applicable rules.



Select the language that you wish to use from the list available at 1. then confirm by pressing 2.



The multimedia system informs vou and enables vou to control vour personal data.

For more information on the various data sharing options, press

the "Information" icon

After reviewing the information provided, confirm your choice by pressing "Confirm" to continue.

Then choose the terms of use of vour personal data from the following choices:

- "Accept all", authorises the sharing of your personal data and allows access to all available connected services:

- "Refuse all", refuses the sharing of your personal data and does not allow access to or operation of connected services (with the exception of regulatory functions related to the safety of the automatic emergency call in the event of an accident):

- "Customise", allows the personalisation of the conditions of use of your personal data by activating/disabling certain functionalities related to the following data:

- « My Alpine » ;

- "My on-board connected services";

 "Improvement and development of products and services";
 ...

The multimedia system uses Google® software and services that exchange data with your multimedia system. You are informed of the legal conditions of the Google® services.

You can authorise or reject:

- the use of your location by apps;
- sending usage/diagnostic data.

Note:

- if you do not want applications to use your vehicle's current position, you will not have access to the navigation Google MapsTM;

- for more information about app permissions and privacy, see the sections on "App Management"

→ 73 and "System Settings" → 108.



You can customise your profile by configuring the following functions:

- "My Alpine account";
- configure "Google Assistant" and the apps;
- lock the profile.

Note: you can suspend the configuration by pressing 3, then resume it later from the notification centre or your profile. For more information on configuring the profile, please refer to the "User settings" section \rightarrow 104.

"My Alpine account"

The multimedia system enables you to connect to your "My Alpine" account so that you can manage certain functions of your vehicle and access this information via your smartphone.

For further information on "My Alpine", please refer to the section on "My Alpine" \rightarrow 75.

configure "Google Assistant" and applications

The multimedia system offers various ways to connect to your account Google®:

- using your Google® account ID (email or phone number, then password);
- depending on your phone model, using a QR Code that can be scanned on the screen of the multimedia system.

Follow the instructions shown on the multimedia system screen.

Lock the profile

In order to safeguard sensitive information and preserve your privacy, we strongly recommend that you protect your personal data. In order to do this, the multimedia system enables you to lock access to your profile using the following methods:

- « Pattern » ;
- « PIN code » ;

- « Password » :
- "Do not use profile lockina".

Follow the instructions displayed on the multimedia system screen to complete the configuration.



To preserve your privacy, including the confidentiality and integrity of your personal data, we stronaly recommend that you lock your profile.

Data collection



Once your services activation request has been validated, you will still be able to activate/deactivate data collection or to modify the level of data sharina. To choose the terms of use for your personal data, open the notification centre, select vour "Profile ", Edit profile, then "Privacy settings".

Then choose from the following levels of data sharina:

- "Accept all": authorise the sharing of your data;
- "Refuse all": refuse the sharing of your data:

- "Customise": authorise the sharing of data that you have selected from the list.

Note: if you do not wish to share your data, the services that require your consent may no longer work (except for standard services/functions related to the automatic emergency call in the event of an accident).

Temporary suspension of data collection

The collection of vehicle data may be temporarily suspended.

To do this, you can pause or modify the level of data collection at any time from your "Profile" available in the Notifications centre: press "Share only data". You can

suspend certain data collection by selectina "Refuse all", or suspend certain data collections by selecting "Customise", and then choose those that you want to suspend.

If you refuse data sharina, the services that require your consent may no longer work (except for standard services related to the automatic emergency call in the event of an accident).



Data protection

Your personal data is processed for the following purposes:

- to enable you to control the vehicle remotely, update the vehicle automatically or provide entertainment services in the vehicle:

- to enable vehicle maintenance:

- to improve the driving experience, provide various mobility methods and develop products and services:

- to meet our legal or regulatory obligations.

In accordance with the applicable regulations on the protection of personal data, you can ask to:

- obtain and check the data that the manufacturer holds concerning you;

- correct any inaccurate information;

- remove data concerning you;

- take a copy of your data to reuse it elsewhere;

- oppose the use of your data at any time;

- freeze the use of your data.

From your vehicle's multimedia screen, you can:

- refuse to give your consent to the sharing of your personal data (including location);

- withdraw your consent at any time.

If you decide to suspend the sharing of your personal data, some of the vehicle's functions and/or services supplied by the manufacturer will be stopped as they require your consent.

Regardless of whether or not you decide to suspend sharing, the vehicle usage data will be forwarded to the manufacturer and the partners/subsidiaries concerned for the following purposes:

to enable the operation and maintenance of your vehicle;
improve the life cycle of your vehicle.

This data is not used for commercial services but for the continual improvement of the manufacturer's vehicles and to prevent problems that may hinder their daily use.

Expiry of the services

The services are activated for a limited period. Once this has elapsed, the services cease to work. To reactivate the services, please see the paragraph on "Renewing a service" → 76.

D The manufacturer shall take all necessary precautions to ensure a level of safety appropriate to the risks, taking into account the applicable rules.

OPERATING PRINCIPLES

Multimedia screen



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.

The multimedia screen can be used to access the system functions. Touch the multimedia screen to select one of the menus

Gesture interaction



Some settings have to be modified while the engine is on in order for them to be stored by the multimedia system.

Navigating a menu





- Briefly press: touch a part of the screen with your finger then immediately take your finger off the screen.

- Press and hold: touch a part of the screen for at least 1.5 second.

- Zoom-in/Zoom-out: bring together two fingers or slide them apart on the screen.



- Swipe: slide your finger quickly:
 - horizontally, from left to right or from right to left;

or

- vertically, from bottom to top or from top to bottom.

OPERATING PRINCIPLES

Introduction to the "World" bar



- can be used to enable smartphone replication.

- "Applications": can be used to access the apps;

- "Vehicle": enables you to manage some vehicle equipment such as DRIVE MODE, driving aids, Alpine Telemetrics and to adjust various settings on the multimedia system, such as the display, language, etc.

Introduction to the "World" pages

Your multimedia system includes a World bar **A**. The is made up of five Worlds, all of which can be accessed at any times on the multimedia display screen:

- "Navigation" : includes all of the satellite guidance functions, road maps and traffic information;

- "Audio": used to access the radio and playback of audio files;

- "Phone"/"Replication":

- can be used to pair one or more phones to the system or to access calls, the phonebook and other available functions on the phone that is connected to the multimedia system;



tions such as tyre pressure adjustment, the radio, etc.

These widgets grant you direct access to the main screen for the function or, in certain cases, enable you to directly control them from one of the main screens (change the radio station, for example).

Note: you can change the configuration of the "Navigation" page. Please refer to the "Add and manage widgets" section for further information \rightarrow 19.

Notification centre



Move from one World to another by pressing directly on one of the World buttons *1*.

The "Navigation" World includes widgets providing access to func-

Can be accessed using button **2** or by quickly swiping the multimedia screen from area **B** towards the 1

OPERATING PRINCIPLES

centre of the screen. The Notifications centre enables access to the notification history, for example:

- SMS ;
- « Tyre pressure » ;
- available updates;
- ...



For more information on notifications, please refer to the "Notifications" section \rightarrow 111.

Functions unavailable

While driving, functions such as access to the tutorial and some settings may be unavailable, according to country-specific regulation.

To access unavailable functions, stop your vehicle.

Note: in some countries, regulation requires that the parking brake be applied in order to access the applications. For further information, please contact an approved dealer.

Select a notification to access it.

To delete a notification, perform a quick swipe on the screen.

To delete all notifications, press button *3*.

You can also create and configure your user profile. For further information, please refer to the section on "User settings" → 104.

CLEANING

Cleaning recommendations



Do not pour or spray the cleaning product on the screen.

Do not use chemical cleaning agents or household products. The device should not come into contact with any liquids and should not be exposed to dampness. If so, surfaces or electrical components may be degraded or damaged.



Do not use products containing alcohol and/or spray fluids on the area.

Use only a clean, lint-free, soft dry micro-fibre cloth to clean the touchscreen so as not to damage the anti-glare materials.

Do not apply too much pressure on the multimedia screen and do not use cleaning equipment that may scratch the screen (e.g. brush, rough cloth, etc.).

"Cleaning screen" mode



To use a micro-fibre cloth on the multimedia system screen when it is on, briefly press the control *1* on the multimedia panel, then press "Cleaning screen" *2* to set the touchscreen to inactive mode.

To exit the mode "Cleaning screen", press the multimedia screen twice.



Observe the following cleaning recommendations:

A. : do not use alcohol-based fluids, do not apply or spray fluids;

B. : do not clean with soapy water using a slightly moistened micro-fibre cloth;

C. : dry clean using a micro-fibre cloth.

SWITCHING ON, OFF

Switching on



The multimedia system starts:

- when the doors are opened;

- by briefly pressing the multimedia panel control *1*.



The multimedia system can be switched off:

- by briefly pressing the control *t* on the multimedia panel, then by pressing on "Stand-by";

- when the opening elements of your vehicle are locked.

Minimum display

This function allows you to display only the exterior temperature, the clock and the heating level bar on the screen.

To select this display mode, briefly press the control *1* on the multimedia panel, then press the "Minimal display" function. Other functions will be displayed when you briefly press the control *t*:

- « Radio - Music OFF »/« Radio - Music ON » ;

- « Cleaning screen ».

Restart



The multimedia system can be restarted by pressing and holding (press and hold until the system restarts):

- on the multimedia panel control *1*;

or

- on the "Mode" button **3** and the left-hand "Source" button **2** on the steering column control.

ADD, MANAGE WIDGETS

Introduction



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.

Widget configuration is linked to the profile. If the profile changes, the widgets display changes too.

A C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C
 C

Your system has a customisable "Navigation" page. This is made up of a number of widgets in area *A* that enable access to information and functions such as the My driving, radio, tyre pressure adjustment, etc.

Press one of the widget controls to directly control the function via the main screen (change the radio station, access the phone, etc.).

Widget size



To allow more visibility to the navigation map, you can reduce the widget area.

Press button *t* or swipe the multimedia screen from the widgets area *A* towards the edge of the screen.



To enlarge the widgets screen, press the widget or quickly swipe the multimedia screen from the widgets area **B** towards the centre of the screen.

ADD, MANAGE WIDGETS

Customising the widgets





From the "Vehicle" world , the "Vehicle" menu, "Cockpit", then

"Edit widgets" you can customise the widgets.

You can also customise the widgets from the "Navigation" world

by "swiping" from area *A* towards the centre of the screen, then by pressing and holding the widget that you wish to customise. Then select the desired location in area **B** simply by touching the screen and select the widget that you wish to display from the list **C**.

Introduction

Your multimedia system has a voice recognition system:

- « Google Assistant » ;

- voice command via smartphone replication.

The voice recognition system can be used to control some functions on the multimedia system and on your smartphone by voice command. You can use your multimedia system or your smartphone while keeping your hands on the steering wheel.

Use the voice command by addressing the multimedia system as if you were speaking to a person naturally.

Note: the position of the voice recognition button may vary. Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information.

You can use the voice recognition systems:

- of the multimedia;

- of the smartphone available via smartphone replication.

For more information on smartphone replication, please see the "Android AutoTM, CarPlayTM" \Rightarrow 69.

Using the multimedia system's voice recognition

Main functions controlled by the voice command of your multimedia system

Some voice commands can be used to access the following vehicle functions:

- Navigation;
- Music;
- Radio;
- Phone;

- Vehicle functions (air conditioning, Drive Mode);

- Connected services (weather, news, etc.);

- ...

Note: if you wish to use voice recognition, make sure that you are located in a network coverage area. Certain functions cannot be accessed in the event of poor reception.

Connecting to an account Google® enables you to further customise the assistant when the vehicle is connected. For example, it is possible to call saved contacts or to find out about the content of the calendar Google®.

Note:

- "Google Assistant" is not yet available in all languages. For

more information on availability or to try another language (on condition of availability), please see support.google.com;

- voice commands become enriched and improve with software updates;

- the instructions below are general descriptions and include thirdparty vendors. The availability, version and functionality may vary or be modified.

Voice controls



You can use voice control to call a contact in your phonebook, enter a destination and change the radio station without touching the screen. Briefly press button *1* and

an audible confirmation will sound along with a visual confirmation on the screen.

Note: this function is only available on vehicles equipped with the navigation system.

"Google Assistant" activation



- by briefly pressing the voice recognition button *t* in your vehicle;

or

- by pressing the widget "Google Assistant" **2**;

or



There are several ways to activate the voice recognition system:

- after stating the "Ok Google" or "Hey Google" voice command and receiving audible feedback and visual feedback on the screen *3*, state your request (e.g. "Go home");

or

- by pressing the 4 icon from the

"Navigation"

"Voice recognition" menu

From the "Vehicle" world ., "Settings", "Google®", then "Google

Assistant", you can:

- select the assistant's "Language";

- activate/deactivate the "Say Ok Google" voice command;
- authorise custom results;

- proactively display custom results;

- receive notifications from the "Google Assistant".

"Navigation" control with voice recognition

There are several methods available to enter a destination using the voice control included with your multimedia system.

Note: to benefit from all of the features, you must activate your Google® account and have saved addresses. For further information, please refer to the section on "User settings" → 104.

To start a voice command linked to navigation, activate the voice command then, after the beep, state your command in relation to one of the following topics:

- "Points of interest";
- "Destination";
- "Home";
- "Work";
- "Route information";
- "Guidance";

- ...

"Points of interest"

To search for a POI (point of interest) using the voice command.

Examples:

- "Go to the baker";

- "Drive me to the Paris train station";

- "Take me to the Eiffel Tower";

- ...

"Destination"

To enter a complete address using voice command.

Examples:

- "Go to 7 rue de la Joie, Paris";
- "Take me to Paris";
- "Go to Montmartre, Paris";

- ...

Note: the examples can be adapted according to the country and the language.

"Home" and "Work"

To get to your home or work using voice command.

Examples:

- "Go home";
- "Drive me home";
- "Take me to work";

- ...

Note: to use the "Go home" or "Go to work" voice function, you must enter a Google® account and save an address.

"Route information"

To be informed of the route in progress using voice command. Examples:

- "What is my route?";
- "What is the arrival time?";
- "What is the remaining distance?";

- ...

"Guidance"

To take action on current route guidance using voice command.

Examples:

- "Activate/deactivate the voice guidance";
- "Avoid toll roads";
- "Cancel the route";

- ...

"Audio" command with voice recognition

You can activate the music or radio using the voice command included in your multimedia system.

To launch a voice command relat-

ed to the "Audio" , activate the voice command then, after the beep, state your command in relation to one of the following topics:

- "Audio source";
- « Radio » ;

- "Music";
- "Playback commands";

- ...

"Audio source"

You can change the audio source. Example:

- "Play the radio";

- "Launch the streaming music app";

- ...

« Radio »

You can choose the radio station.

Example:

- "Play Jazz radio";
- "Play 91.8";

- ...

"Music"

You can launch music (an audio track, playlists, etc.) only for streaming music.

Example:

- "Listen to <name of artist>, with <name of preferred application>";

- "Listen to <song title>, with

<name of preferred application>";

- "Listen to <name of album>, with <name of preferred application>";

- "Play <name of playlist>, with <name of preferred application>";

- ...

Note: some streaming music applications require an associated account to be connected to it.

"Playback commands"

You can command the current plavlist.

Example:

- "Plavback":
- "Pause":
- "Next":
- "Previous".

Note: the commands may vary or may not be available depending on the application used.

"Phone" command with voice recoanition

It is possible to call a number or a contact using the voice control included with your multimedia system.

To launch a voice command relat-

ed to the "Phone"



the voice command then, after the beep, state your command in relation to one of the following topics:

- "Call":
- "Dial":
- "Call log";
- «SMS »;
- ...

Note:

- vou must activate data sharing on your phone, for more information please refer to the section on "Activating services" \rightarrow 10;

- vou authorise the customised results in the Google® settings, for more information please refer to the "System settings" section → 108.

"Call" and "Dial"

You can call a contact available in your phonebook or dial a telephone number.

Examples:

- "Call Grégory";
- "Call Grégory home";
- "Call my voicemail";
- "Dial 06 77 07...";
- "Dial 06 77 07...";
- ...

"Call log"

You can view the call history for your phone.

Example:

- "Call loa":
- "Display calls";
- "Recent calls";

- ...

«SMS »

You can dictate and send an SMS or have an SMS read out.

Example:

- "Send to Fabien 'Let's meet later for ...'":

- "Read the SMS":
- "Reply to the SMS";

- ...

Note:

- you must activate data sharing so that you can have the SMS read by your multimedia system, for more information please refer to the section on "Activating services" **→ 10**:

- vou must authorise the customised results in the Google® settings, for more information please refer to the "System settings" section **→ 108**;

- only SMS received while driving can be read by the multimedia system.

"Vehicle functions" command with voice recognition

You can activate some of your vehicle's functions using the voice command integrated into your multimedia system.

To launch a voice command linked to the "Vehicle" world, activate the voice command then, after you hear the audible confirmation.

state your command in relation to one of the following topics:

- "Range";
- "Heating level";
- ...

"Range"

(depending on equipment)

You can obtain certain information relating to the battery life of your vehicle.

Example:

- "Can I go to Dunkerque";
- "What is my battery range?";
- ...

"Heating level"

You can activate certain functions associated with the heating level.

Example:

- "Activate ventilation on the feet";

- "Activate the heated steering wheel";

- "Increase the passenger seat heating";

- "Synchronise the temperature";

- "Reduce the temperature";

- "Set the temperature to 21 degrees";

- ...

"Connected Service" command with voice recognition

You can ask the connected services certain questions using the voice command included in your multimedia system.

To launch a voice command linked to the "Connected services", activate the voice command then, after the beep, state your command in relation to one of the following topics:

- "Weather";
- "News";
- "Sports";
- "Events";
- ...

Example:

- "What is the weather like in Paris ? train station";

- "What is today's news?" train station";
- "What is the match score"? Paris
- Marseille ? train station";

- ...

Using voice recognition by smartphone replication

Main functions controlled by your smartphone's voice command

When the smartphone is connected to the multimedia system via

smartphone replication, some voice commands can be used to access the domains and apps available on the smartphone.

For more information on smartphone replication, please see the "Android AutoTM, CarPlayTM " section \rightarrow 69.

Some voice commands can be used to access the following smartphone functions:

- Navigation ;
- Music;
- Phone ;
- ...

Note: if you wish to use your smartphone's voice recognition with the multimedia system, make sure that you are located in area with network coverage.

Smartphone replication command with voice recognition

When you use voice recognition using smartphone replication, you use your phone's Internet connection, which is subject to charges and limitations imposed by your mobile operator.

To use your smartphone's voice recognition system with your multimedia system, you must:

- ensure that your smartphone has a voice recognition function that is compatible with your multimedia system;

- connect your smartphone to the multimedia system via smartphone replication.

For more information, please refer to "Connecting, disconnecting a phone" \rightarrow 56 and "Android AutoTM, CarPlayTM" \rightarrow 69.

Voice controls



You can use the smartphone replication voice command without using the screen by long-pressing button *1*; a confirmation will then sound and be displayed on screen.

Activation

To activate the voice recognition system:

- press and hold the voice recognition button *t* in your vehicle;

- from the "Replication" World

mand associated to the application in use. **Note:** when using voice recognition, always wait for an audible confirmation to sound before speaking.

To start a voice command linked to applications compatible with voice recognition, activate voice command, then say your request after the sound signal.

Using the phone application via smartphone replication, using voice command.

Example:

- "Call José";
- "Call the office";

- ...

Using the navigation application for smartphone replication, using voice command.

Example:

- "Go to Champs-Élysées in Paris";
- "Go home";

- ...

Note: the commands used for voice recognition depend on the application on the replicated smartphone.

Мар



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.

Displaying the map

Press the "Navigation" World



1 to access the map.

You can also access the map from

the "Applications" World then "Maps".

The map tells you your current position and various information that you configured (display POI, points of interest, traffic information etc.).

To move around the navigation map, drag the desired direction on the screen.

Press "Recentre" to return to your current position.

Note:

- "Maps" is the default navigation app. Other apps may be available to download from "Play Store™",

which can be accessed from the



- the map is updated automatically without any need for action on your part.

"Map" screen without a route in progress





1. "Navigation" World



2. Guidance voice settings: "Deactivated", "Alerts only" or "Reactivated".

3. View mode to display as "North at the top" (2D/North), "User view" (2,5D) or "Overview".

4. Zoom on the map: press the "+"/"-" button to zoom in/zoom out on the map.

Note: you can also zoom in or out by widening or narrowing the gap between your two fingers on the screen.

5. Name of the street which you are on. Press to access additional features.

MAP

- 6. Navigation settings.
- 7. Your current position.

2 *8.* Мар.

- 9. Destination search bar.
- *10.* Re-centre map after exploring it.

"Map" screen with a route in progress





2. Guidance voice settings: "Deactivated", "Alerts only" or "Reactivated".

3. View mode to display as "North at the top" (2D/North), "User view" (2,5D) or "Overview".

4. Zoom on the map: press the "+"/"-" button to zoom in/zoom out on the map.

- 6. Navigation settings.
- 7. Your current position.
- 8. Map with route display.

10. Re-centre map after exploring it.

11. Lane and direction you should follow to continue on your calculated route.

12. Journey information such as the arrival time, traffic info and the remaining distance to the next stage or final destination (depending on the configuration), estimated battery charge percentage upon destination, etc.

- 13. "Choose another route".
- 14. "Search along the route".
- 15. "Route overview".
- 16. "Stop navigation".

Navigation display on the instrument panel









ā.



the navigation display is reduced in size on the other displays *A*;
full screen navigation on the dedicated display *B*.

You can display navigation information on the instrument panel screen in two view modes:

classic view A. The information is displayed in the upper area of the instrument panel screen C;
full screen view B.

Note: the navigation display on the instrument panel screen is only available with the "Google MapsTM" multimedia system navigation.

Depending on the equipment, replication navigation via "Android AutoTM" can be displayed on the instrument panel screen.

For more information on the instrument panel display, please refer to the vehicle user manual.

Guidance voice settings



To set the guidance voice, press **2** to select one of the following options:

- "Deactivated" 18;
- "Alerts only" 19;
- "Reactivated" 20.

Note: if you select the "Deactivated" function, no voice guidance instructions will be emitted by the multimedia system.

Depending on the view selected via the steering column control "VIEW" *17*, there are two navigation display types on the instrument panel:

MAP

Display mode

"User view" (2,5D) 22

"Overview" 23







You can change the map view by pressing the *3* button.

"North at the top view" (2D/ North) *21*

The map displays your current position facing North. The map displays your current position on a 3D map surface.

It automatically faces the direction of travel.

To change the tilt of the relief map, slide your two fingers on the screen from bottom to top or from top to bottom. The map displays your current north-facing position as well as the overview of the route in progress.

Note: this view is only available when a route is in progress.

Guidance

Guidance is activated once the route has been calculated. The multimedia system guides you all the way along your route, informing you at each intersection of the direction to follow over several stages.

Stage 1: preparation

MAP

The multimedia system will inform you, using the navigation voice, that you will soon have to carry out a manoeuvre.

Stage 2: alert

The multimedia system announces the manoeuvre that you need to carry out.

e.g. "In 400 metres, take the next exit".

Stage 3: manoeuvre

The multimedia system indicates which manoeuvre should be carried out.

e.g. "Take the next right".

Note: if you do not follow the driving recommendations or if you quit the calculated route, a new route is automatically recalculated by the multimedia system.

"Route overview"



This function is used to view the details of the current route.

From the "Route overview" icon *15*, you can view:

- the current route in detail;

- the starting point and destination, as well as the various suggested routes;

- the various stages, distances and durations for each stage;

- ...

ENTER A DESTINATION

Enter a destination



Precautions regarding navigation Use of the navigation

system does not in any way replace the responsibility or vigilance of the driver when driving the vehicle.



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.



Certain functions are only available while the vehicle is stationary.

From the "Navigation" World 1, press the destination search bar 2.

Using voice recognition to enter an address

Activate voice command, then state the name of a town, a number and/or street name, a destination area.

For more information, see the section on "Using voice recognition" → 21.

Note: to benefit from all the navigation functions, please connect to your Google® account.



From the destination search bar **2** you can access:

- recent destinations;

- categories (POI: points of interest);

- saved addresses (home, work, favourites, etc.).

Note: the activation of location and data sharing is required in order to use the online destination search function. Please see the section on "Activating services" → 10.

"Home" and "Work" destinations



From the search bar, you can run navigation guidance to your "Home" or "Work" location.

When you select "Home" or "Work" for the first time, the system asks you to register an address.

ENTER A DESTINATION

Note: only one "Home" and one "Work" address can be stored by the multimedia system.

Finding an address

11	\$.2									1	0°C	16:36
	+	Q rue de	la gare						8	\$	6	1 8
88	٩	Rue de la	Gare (A)							ĸ	
25	9	Rue de la	Gare					-			5	1
2				4	5	6			8		9	0
												P
áà 🛛												
	Ŷ											×
	ė								24			۹
21*	\$83			Ŋ		٢	u				28	

From the search bar **2**, you can enter a full or partial address (country, town, postcode, street, street number, intersection, etc.).

When you start entering letters, the system suggests similar street names. You can:

- press the street name displayed on the screen to confirm your selection;
- browse the list **A** of suggested streets to see the full list corresponding to your search.

Search for a destination



Recent destinations 3



From the destination search bar **2**, you can access the tabs for the following different types of destinations:

- "Recent" 3;
- "Categories" 4;
- "Save" **5**.

From the search bar, select the "Recent" tab to access the list of recently-used destinations. These are automatically stored from the multimedia system and from the devices connected to your "Google®" account.

Select a destination to start guidance.

ENTER A DESTINATION

Destinations by category 4







From the search bar, select the "Categories" tab to access a list of POI categories (point of interest):

- "Recharging terminals";
- "Restaurants";
- "Convenience stores";

- "Cafes".

A POI (point of interest) is a service, establishment or tourist attraction close to a location (start point, destination city, on the route etc.). After you have selected a category, the multimedia system will offer a list of POI at **B** and on the map. You can:

- press the POI displayed at *B* to confirm your choice;
- browse the list **B** of POI on display to access the full list corresponding to your search.

Note: the list of POI is updated in real time by "Google MapsTM".

After you have selected a POI, the multimedia system displays the following information (if available):

- address, opening times, opinions, etc.;
- phone number;
- time of arrival, distance;
- route overview;

- ...


You can also search for a POI with a route already in progress.

Note: the search for POI is based on your position when the request is made. If the search is for another geographical area, enter the desired location.

After searching and selecting a POI, the multimedia system displays the information (if available) and its location along the route in progress.

To display the route in progress, press **7**.

To add a stop at POI on the route in progress, press **6**.

"Save" 5

You can access the places you have saved:

- "With text";
- "Favourites";
- "Saved";
- "To visit";
- "Contacts".

Note: the saved locations are synchronised with your account Google® even if they are used on other devices connected to your account.

"Browse the map"

To zoom in/out on the map, press the buttons **9** or widen/narrow the gap between your two fingers on the screen.

To recentre the map, press the "Recentre" button **8**.

Entering a destination when a route is in progress

When a route is in progress, you can access the following functions:

- "Choose another route" 12;
- "Search along the route" 10;
- "Navigation settings" 13;
- "Stop navigation" 14;
- "Route overview" 11;

- ...

10°C 16:29 Rechercher Rechercher Rechercher Recentrer 21° & 3 A/C 22 8

To explore the map, move the map by keeping your finger pressed on the screen while dragging it.

"Choose another route" 12

"Search along the route" 10

"Settings" 13







To view the other routes suggested by the multimedia system, press *12*. This function enables you to search for and/or to add one or more stages to your route in progress. You can add:

- a search using voice recognition;
- "Recharging terminals";
- "Restaurants";
- "Convenience stores";
- "Cafes".

Use this menu to access the following navigation settings:

- "Traffic";
- "3D buildings";
- "Guidance sound";
- "Route options";

- "Change the address of the home or work place" (if saved already);

- "Offline maps";
- "Confidentiality centre";
- "About/Help".

For further information on the "Settings", see the section on "Navigation settings" \rightarrow 40.

"Stop navigation" 14



"Route overview" 11



Use this function to cancel the current route. Press *14* to stop the current navigation. From the route overview 11, you can view the route in progress as well as other alternative routes.

By pressing on one of the routes, you can view the journey and its distance and duration.

"Navigation" World for electric vehicle

The configuration of the multimedia system depends on the engine of your electric vehicle (e.g. "Charging station")

Additional menus and different settings are displayed.

Note:

services must be activated in order to display the available charging points. Please see the section on "Activating services" → 10;
in order to benefit from all the navigation functions, enter information about your vehicle (e.g. type of charging socket) by connecting to your Google® account.

Charging terminal settings





Enter a destination





From the charging terminal settings *15*, you can set the filters at *16* to enable the navigation screen to only display charging terminals meeting criteria such as:

- charging speeds (e.g. 150 KW or faster) ;

- types of compatible sockets (e.g. Type 2 CCS, etc.) ;

– available payment networks (e.g. Mobilize Charge Pass, etc.).

To activate/deactivate the filters, press:

- charging speeds 17;
- compatible sockets 18;

- payment networks 19.

Note: if the filter icon is highlighted, this indicates that it is activated. When you enter a destination, the multimedia system informs you if you can reach it given your vehicle's remaining battery charge level.

If the destination is accessible, the estimated battery charge percentage when reaching the destination is displayed at **20**.

Note:

- once navigation has started, the estimated battery charge level upon arrival will be updated continuously as you drive;

- the charging time is included in the journey time.

If only one charge stop is required, you can choose your charging station.

If more than one charge is required to reach the destination, an optimised combination of charging stations is automatically calculated by the multimedia system to keep the total route to a minimum.

You can view the names of public charging stations in the list *C* as well as the journey and the various charging station locations on the map.

Note: the list of charging stations is updated in real time by "Google MapsTM".





Press one of the charging stations displayed at ${\pmb c}$ to view the following details:

- name, classification, opening hours and address;
- type and number of charging sockets available;
- time, distance and remaining level of the estimated battery charge upon arrival;
- payment method;

- ...

Note: the information on the availability of the charging sockets displayed on the screen may change during navigation.

You can then:

- start navigation guidance to the station;
- call the station;
- ...

"Settings" menu



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.







From the "Settings" icon *1* you can access the following settings:

- "Traffic" **2**;
- "Guidance sound" **3**;
- "Route options" 4;
- "Offline maps" 5;
- "Confidentiality centre" 6;
- "About/Help" 7;

- activate/deactivate the "Traffic" function **8**;

- "3D buildings" 9;

- activate/deactivate the "3D buildings" function *10*;

- "Home or work address" 11.

"Traffic" 2

This function enables you to receive real time traffic information such as:

- traffic information and incidents in your area;

- accidents, road works or closure of nearby roads;

- ...

Press *8* to activate/deactivate the "Traffic" function.

From the "Navigation" world press the "Settings" icon *1* to access the navigation settings.



"Guidance sound" 3



"Route options" 4

Options d'itinéraire

Eviter les autoroutes

Z Éviter les péages

Eviter les ferries

523

21

Privilégier les itinéraires

économes en énergie

受

28

"Offline maps" 5



From this setting, you can:

- mute the sound of the "Navigation" *12*;

- mute the sound of the "Navigation" and keep only the sound of the "Traffic" alerts **13**;

- reactivate the voice guidance sound *14*;

- test the sound of the "Navigation" to adjust the volume of the voice guidance **15**. From this setting, you can activate/deactivate the following route options:

- "Avoid major roads";
- "Avoid toll roads";
- "Avoid ferries";

- "Give priority to energy efficiency". Offline maps enable you to download and save maps in your multimedia system so they can be used when you go to a location where the Internet connection is slow, cannot be accessed or do not wish to use an Internet connection.

The list of offline maps is available at \boldsymbol{A} .

To add an offline map to "Custom selection", press *16*.

Custom selection

"Confidentiality centre" 6

"Share driving data with Google®







This function can be used to select an area on the map and its information to be downloaded.

Pan and zoom the map to adjust the selection to be downloaded.

From this menu, you can configure the following data to be shared:

- "Share driving data with Google®";
- "Offline maps".

To directly access the vehicle's location settings, press "Access the location settings" *17*.

Your driving and location data can be shared with Google®. These can be used to improve the information provided to you and other users by Google®, such as navigation, traffic conditions in real-time, availability of "Offline maps", etc. Sharing may be:

- "Deactivated";
- activated only "During detailed navigation";
- "Always activated".

Options for "Offline maps"



"About/Help" 7

← A propos/Aide

hors connexion

Centre d'aide

g.co/mapsincar

Historique Web

a.co/myactivity

\$83

21

Aide concernant les plans

Licences Open Source

"3D buildings" 9



You can choose to download the offline maps update as follows:

- automatically;

or

- manually.

Note: for more information, refer to the details and instructions displayed on the multimedia screen. From this menu, you can access the information and using the following elements:

2.8

- "Help with offline maps";

受

- "Open Source licence";
- "Help centre";
- "Web history";
- « Google Maps™ » ;
- "Version";

- ...

You can choose to display buildings in 3D where the mapping allows it. Press *10* to activate/deactivate the function.

"Home or work address"11

You can set up your home and work address from this menu.

AUDIO SOURCES

Introduction



From the "Audio" World , you can select the audio source by pressing "Sources" *1*.

You can also select the audio source using the steering column control. For more information please see the "Introduction to the controls" section \Rightarrow 8.

Audio sources may vary according to the equipment level.

Only the audio sources available and downloaded from the "Play Store™" app appear and can be selected on the multimedia screen.

"Audio sources" screen



- 2. "Android Auto™" source.
- *3.* "CarPlay™" source.
- 4. "Bluetooth® audio" source.
- 5. "Google News" source.
- 6. Exit the "Audio sources" screen.
- 7. "Podcasts" source.
- 8. "Radio" source.
- 9. "App" source.
- 10. "USB" source (USB port).

« Android Auto™ »

Use this source to listen to music from your smartphone, if equipped with the "Android AutoTM" app, via smartphone replication. For more information, please refer to the "Android AutoTM, CarPlayTM" \rightarrow 69 and "Music" \rightarrow 50 sections.

« CarPlay™ »

Use this source to listen to music from your smartphone, if equipped with the "CarPlayTM" service, via smartphone replication. For more information, refer to the "Android AutoTM, CarPlayTM" section \Rightarrow 69.

"Bluetooth® audio"

This source can be used to listen to the music on your smartphone via the Bluetooth[®] connection. For further information, please refer to the "Music" \rightarrow 50 and Connecting/ disconnecting a phone" section \rightarrow 56.

"App"

Use this source to listen to music via streaming music apps and to access your audio apps down-loaded via the "Play StoreTM" app. For further information, please refer to the "Music" \rightarrow 50 and "App management" \rightarrow 73 sections.

AUDIO SOURCES

« Radio »

You can use this source to listen to the radio. For more information, refer to the "Radio" section \rightarrow 46.

"USB" (USB port)

Use this source to listen to music from a USB drive. For further information, please refer to the "Music" section \Rightarrow 50.

Note:

- some formats may not be recognised by the system;

- the USB drive must be FAT32 or NTFS formatted and have a minimum capacity of 8 GB and a maximum capacity of 64 GB.

« Podcasts »

Use this source to listen to "Pod-casts".

« Google News »

Use this source to listen to "Google News".

Introduction



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.

You can select a saved station, scroll through the radio stations per
 list depending on the mode selected using the button on the steering column control. For more information on the steering column controls, please refer to the section on "Introduction to the controls"
 ▶ 8.

From the "Audio" World

press button **3** to select the source "Radio".

You can also access the "Radio" source from the "Applications"



Using the steering column control, you can select the audio source, browse through stations and change the selection mode ("List", "Favourites"). For more information, refer to the "Introduction to controls" section. $\rightarrow 8$.

"Radio" screen



- A. "List" mode tab.
- **B.** "Favourites" mode tab.
- C. List of stations available.

D. Playback area for the radio station currently playing and access to the full screen display. Press this area to display the currently playing track in full screen.



1. Access the "Audio" World

2. Access the "Applications" World

3. Access the audio "Sources".

- 4. Access the "Audio settings".
- 5. Access the "Radio settings".
- 6. Radio station currently playing.

7. Save a station in the "Favourites".

8. Stop the radio/playback of the current station.

9. The name of the current station and the frequency. Text Information (radio logo, singer, song, etc.).

10. Type of "Sources" being listened to.

Note: some information is only available on certain radio stations.

Full screen display E



Press this area to display the radio station currently playing in area **D** when in full screen play mode.

To minimise the full screen display *E*, press *11*.

With the vehicle stationary, you can activate the "Auto-scrolling image display" by pressing the logo of the radio being played, if the current station DAB allows it.

Select a radio band

Press the button **5** to set the following wavebands.

- « FM » :
 - « Alternative Frequency (AF) »;
 - « Region ».
- "DAB" (terrestrial digital radio).
 - « Switching (DAB ↔ FM) » ;
 - "Auto-scrolling images".

Radio programme

Depending on the station being listened to, you will be able to see a detailed view of the programmes currently playing and of those playing over the next 24 hours.

Press the button *13* to display the list of these programmes.

Note: this function is only available if the station is playing in DAB.

Station search

You can search for radio stations in the current radio band in alphabetical order on the list: move forward or backward to the next station by pressing the buttons *12*.

Add/remove a radio station to/ from the "Favourites"

From the full screen display or from "List" mode, press the button 7 to add/remove the current station to/from the "Favourites".

Mode "List" A



This mode enables you to search and view the stations captured by the multimedia system and listed alphabetically.

Quickly swipe the list *C* to list all of the stations.

Select a radio station from the list to listen to it directly.

The radio station currently playing is displayed in the mini player **D**.

Press this area to display the current radio in full screen.

If "FM" band radio stations do not use the RDS system or if the vehicle is in an area with poor radio reception, the station name and logo will not appear on the screen, only the frequency.

Note: some information is only available on certain radio stations.

"Favourites" mode B

古事业专生				10°C 08:18			
	🖾 Radio		۲	SOURCES			
		Liste	Favoris				
85	Cherrie	REM	E1	MINICA			
84	CHERIE FM	BFM RADIO	EUROPE 1	AFRICA RADIO			
0	EV450W	LATINA	EUROPE 1 Station Inco	D 00			
20 ^{°c}	\$82 A/	c گ	Ģ	73			

This mode allows you to access the previously stored radio stations.

Select a radio station from the list to listen to it directly.

The radio station currently playing is displayed in the mini player **D**.

"Radio settings" menu 5



From the "Radio settings" menu *5*, you can access the following radio function settings:

- "TA/I-Traffic (depending on equipment)";
- « FM » ;
- "DAB" (depending on equipment);

- "i-Announcement" (depending on equipment and country).

"TA/I-Traffic" (traffic information)

(depending on equipment)

When this function is activated, your audio system enables traffic bulletins to be received (depending on the country) if they are broadcast on certain FM and DAB radio stations.

You must then select the frequency of the station that is transmitting traffic information. If you are listening to another source (USB, Bluetooth®), it will be automatically interrupted whenever traffic information is received.

« FM »

From the settings, you can activate or deactivate the following elements:

- « Alternative Frequency (AF) »;
- « Region ».

« Alternative Frequency (AF) »

The frequency of an "FM" radio station may change depending on the geographical area.

Activate the Alternative Frequency (AF) function to continue listening to the same radio station whilst changing geographical area.

The audio system will automatically track frequency changes without interruption.

Note: not all radio stations offer this possibility.

Poor reception can sometimes cause erratic and annoying changes in frequency. In this case you should deactivate the automatic frequency retuning.

« Region »

When "Region" is activated, if the signal level drops, the radio will switch to a new frequency operating as a relay for the station you were listening to previously.

Note:

- stations in the same area sometimes broadcast different programmes or use different radio station names;

- some radio stations broadcast on regional frequencies. In this case:

- with "Region" activated: the system will not switch to the transmitter for the new region, but the system will switch normally between the transmitters of the initial region;

- "Region" deactivated: the system will switch to the transmitter for the new region, even if the broadcast program is different.

« DAB »

(depending on equipment)

From the settings, you can activate or deactivate the following elements:

- « Switching (DAB ↔ FM) » ;

- "Auto-scrolling image display" (depending on equipment).

« Switching (DAB \leftrightarrow FM) »

When this function is activated, if the reception of the DAB station currently playing is poor, the radio system switches automatically to an equivalent FM station (if available).

The audio system will automatically return to the digital DAB station as soon as reception is available.

Note: this function is only available if the station has FM and DAB versions.

"Auto-scrolling image display"

When this feature is enabled and the current station DAB allows it, an image slideshow scrolls across the screen in full screen playback mode.

Note: This function is only available in a stationary vehicle, by pressing the logo of the radio being played.

« i-Announcement »

(depending on equipment and country)

When this function is activated, it is possible to automatically listen to news as soon as it is broadcast by certain "DAB" radio stations.

If you then select the other sources, when a broadcast of the selected programme type is made, it will interrupt the other sources.

From the settings, you can activate/deactivate announcements for the following topics:

- "Emergency";
- "Incident";
- "Weather";
- "News";
- "Event";
- "Sport";
- "Miscellaneous".

« Audio settings » 4

From the icon *4* you can adjust the audio settings.

For further information on the available settings, see the section on "Audio settings" \rightarrow 53.

MUSIC

Introduction



3

For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.



You can change the audio source using the button on the steering column control.



From the "Audio" World press "Sources" 1 to select the music source to listen to.

Using the steering column control, vou can select the audio source to listen to and browse through the music tracks and folders. For more information, refer to the "Introduction to controls" section $\rightarrow 8$

The music sources may vary according to the equipment level. Only the sources that are available are displayed and can be selected on the multimedia screen.

Note:

- depending on the audio streaming application used, the display and controls may change:

- some formats may not be recognised by the system;

- the USB drive must be FAT32 or NTFS formatted and have a minimum capacity of 8 GB and a maximum capacity of 64 GB.

"Sources" menu



From the "Sources" menu 1 you can select music from the various sources available.

Select an input source connected to the multimedia system from the following list:

- « Radio » :
- "USB" (USB port);
- "Bluetooth® audio":
- « Podcasts » :
- « CarPlay™ »;
- « Android Auto™ » :
- audio streaming app;

- ...

The music sources may vary according to the equipment level.

MUSIC

Note: other media sources can be installed via "Play StoreTM" and will appear in the list of available sources. For more information on installing apps, please refer to the section on "Managing apps" \rightarrow 73.

"Play" mode



A. Information on the audio track currently playing (song title, artist name, album title and image of the cover, if transferred from the source).

2. Access the "Audio" World



- 3. Access the current playlist;
- *4.* Time and length of the audio track playing.

5. Activate/deactivate the audio track repeat once or continuous repeat.

- 6. Play the next audio track.
- 7. Pause/resume the audio track.

8. Briefly press: return to the start of the current audio track.

Briefly press again (within 3 seconds after the first brief press): play the preceding audio track.

9. Activate/deactivate random playback of the audio tracks.

10. Currently playing audio track progress bar.

11. Return to list mode with mini player.

Note:

- you can choose to display the music playing in full screen **A** or in the mini player **B**;

- depending on the phone and streaming music application, certain functions may not be available.

"Bluetooth®", "USB" and audio streaming application



3

From the "Bluetooth® audio", "USB" source or the streaming music application, you can access playlists by category:

- « Artists » ;
- « Albums » ;
- « Songs » ;
- « Playlists » ;
- ...

The currently playing track is displayed in the mini player **B**. Press this area to display the currently playing track in play mode **A**.

MUSIC

"Search"

(Depending on the type of "Sources")



Select the name from the list of suggestions.

"Audio settings" 13

From the icon *13* you can adjust the audio settings.

For further information on the available settings, see the section on "Audio settings" \rightarrow 53.

By pressing the "Search" icon **12**, (availability depends on the type of "Sources" in the "Audio" World



, you can search for:

- a track title;
- an album;
- an artist;
- a Playlist;
- ...

Enter the name using the keyboard.

As soon as you enter the first letters, the multimedia system suggests associated names.

AUDIO SETTINGS

Introduction



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.





From the icon *1* you can adjust the following audio settings:

- « Ambiance » ;
- « Sound ».

« Ambiance »



From the tab **A** you can select one of the following pre-defined musical equalisers:

- "Fidelity";
- "Speech";
- "Dynamic";
- "Heavy";

- ...

Note: the availability of music equalisers depends on the equipment.

AUDIO SETTINGS

« Sound »



« Balance / Fader »



From the tab **B** you can adjust the following settings:

- « Normalise volume » ;
- « Balance / Fader » ;
- « Tone control » ;
- « Volume / Speed ».

This function sets the sound distribution balance. Press "Centred" or "Front" to optimise the sound distribution for all the vehicle occupants or for the comfort of rear passengers (audio muted in the rear and moderate volume at the front of the vehicle).

When you touch the screen or when "Manual" is selected, you can then change the settings by moving the target **2**.

« Tone control »

This function can be used to equalise the audio:

- activate/deactivate "Subwoofer";
- « Bass » ;
- « Medium » ;
- « Treble » ;
- ...

The "Subwoofer" mode optimises sound elements to create an immersive audio experience within the vehicle.

« Volume / Speed »

This function can be used to automatically adjust the volume level according to the vehicle speed. Press "Volume / Speed", then adjust the sensitivity or deactivate it by pressing directly on the "Volume / Speed" level bar.

« Normalise volume »

This function can be used to maintain a constant sound volume from one audio source to another.

Pairing, unpairing a telephone



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.

Introduction

This function enables your phone to be paired with the multimedia system.

You can access the "Pair new device" menu from:



- the "Applications" World then "Devices Manager";

🖼 . "Set-- the "Vehicle" world tings", then "Bluetooth®";

- the "Phone" world , press



the "Settings" icon **L**, then "Devices Manager" (if a phone is already paired);

- the "Audio" world , press "Connect using Bluetooth®" (if a paired phone is not present); - the notification centre, the "Set-

tings" icon **C**, then "Bluetooth®"

Note: if no telephone is connected to the multimedia system, some menus will be disactivated.

Pairing your telephone will enable the multimedia system to access vour telephone functions. No copies of your contacts or personal data will be saved in the multimedia system.

To enable the multimedia system to manage phones equipped with "dual SIM", configure your phone to use a defaultSIM. Please see your phone user manual.

Note:

- before pairing, ensure that your phone's Bluetooth[®] is activated and set its status to "visible"; - the vehicle must be stationary in order for a phone to be paired.

Pairing a phone

To use your hands-free system, pair your Bluetooth® phone with the multimedia system.

For more information about activating the visible status of your phone, please refer to your telephone user manual.

Your phone may ask for authorisation to share your contacts, call logs, messages, etc. Accept sharing if you wish to access this information on the multimedia system.



From the "Phone" World then "Connect using Bluetooth®"

or the "Applications" World then "Devices Manager", from your multimedia system:

- a message is displayed on the screen offering to pair a phone; - press "Pair new device". The multimedia system searches for nearby telephones that have Bluetooth[®] activated and are visible: - select your phone from the list of suggestions or select the multimedia system from your phone.

A message appears on the multimedia system screen as well as on the phone, inviting you to accept the pairing request if the proposed code is identical between the phone and the multimedia system.

Once your phone is paired to the multimedia system, you can select the services that you wish to use

via the "Devices Manager". For more information, please refer to "Connecting, disconnecting a telephone" **→ 56**.

Note: the phone is linked to the profile used when pairing. The phone may be unavailable on other user profiles.

Pairing another telephone

	Ψ							1090	00.11
6	- 0	- Gestionnaire d'appareils					10.0	06:11	
13	÷								
RE	iPhone de Greg Galaxy S9 de Benoit						C	۵	
7					&			0	
0									
					0			2	
20%	- 66 Z		2)		G			100	

From the "Devices Manager" menu you can pair a new phone to the multimedia system:

- press the icon *1* "Pair new device";

- select your new phone from the list of suggestions, then finalise the pairing procedure.

You can also add a new phone

from the "Vehicle" World A., "Settings", "Bluetooth®", "Pair new device", then select your new phone from the list of suggestions and finalise the pairing procedure.

Your new phone is now paired to the multimedia system.

There is no limit on the number of phones that can be paired.

Unpairing a telephone

From the "Devices Manager" menu you can unpair the phone from the multimedia system:

- press the icon **2** of the phone to unpair;

- press "Yes" to confirm.

Connecting, disconnecting a telephone



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.



Certain features are only available while the vehicle is stationary.

Connecting a telephone

To connect a telephone, it must be paired beforehand. For more information, please refer to the section on "Pairing, unpairing a telephone" → 55.

Note: if no telephone is connected to the multimedia system, some menus will be disactivated.

Connecting your telephone will enable the multimedia system to access your telephone functions. No copies of your contacts or personal data will be saved in the multimedia system.

To enable the multimedia system to manage phones equipped with "dual SIM", configure your phone to use a default SIM. Please see your phone user manual.

Automatic connection

Once started, the multimedia system searches for any paired phones with Bluetooth® activated nearby (up to 10 metres away). The system automatically displays the

data of the phone connected (phonebook, music, etc).

Note: when your phone is connected automatically to the multimedia system, the display of data (phonebook, SMS, contacts, etc.) will only be enabled if you previously allowed data sharing when pairing your phone to the multimedia system. For more information, please refer to the section on "Pairing, unpairing a telephone" → 55.

> For further information, please contact an approved dealer.

Manual connection

You can manually connect/disconnect your phone to/from the multimedia system using the "Bluetooth®" menu, which can be accessed from:

- the "Vehicle" world



tings", then "Bluetooth[®]";

- the notification centre, "Set-



From the "Bluetooth®" menu, select "Paired devices" to display a list of paired phones.

Select the services and the phone that you wish to connect and make sure it has Bluetooth® activated.

Note: if a call is ongoing while the telephone is being connected, it will automatically be transferred to the vehicle loudspeakers.

Manage service data



To access your phone directory, music and internet connection directly via the multimedia system, you must authorise service data sharing from the "Profiles" of your "Paired devices", available on the "Bluetooth[®]" menu. Press the name of the "Paired device", then activate/deactivate the services that you wish to use:

- "Phone calls": make and receive calls;

- "Multimedia": access your music;

- "Internet access": access internet connection sharing by Bluetooth® (please refer to the section on "System settings" → 108);

- "SMS": send and receive SMS;

- "Contact sharing": access the phonebook and call log;

- ...

Note: if the service is highlighted, this indicates that it is activated.



« Devices Manager »



From the "Applications" World

, then "Devices Manager", select your phone from the list of suggestions then select the telephone functions that you would like to activate/deactivate:

- « Phone » 1 :

- "Music" 2;

- smartphone replication application **3**:

- unpairing the phone 4.

Note:

- if the service icon is highlighted, this indicates that it is activated:

- Some phones may allow automatic data transfer.

You can also access the "Devices Manager" from the "Devices Manager" icon available in the "Phone" widget of the "Home page" world



Chanaina a connected telephone

From "Devices Manager", select the services to connect to another phone that is already paired and present in the list of devices.

Note: to change the connected telephone, you will first have to pair more than one telephone.

Disconnect a phone

From the "Applications" world

, access " Devices Manager" then tap the highlighted service icon of the phone you want to disconnect:

- « Phone » 1 :
- "Music" 2:

- smartphone replication application 3.

You can also disconnect the phone from the "Bluetooth®" menu: select "Paired devices", then press "Disconnect".

Note: if a call is in progress when the phone is disconnected, the call will be automatically transferred to your phone.

Phone call

"Telephone" World

From the "Phone" World



Note: in order to make a call, your telephone must be connected to your multimedia system. For more information, please refer to "Connecting, disconnecting a telephone" → 56.

Making a call



You can make a call by selecting:

- a number from the call log, by accessing the "Recent calls" tab *A*;

- a contact in the phonebook from the "Contacts" menu **B**;
- a contact in the favourites from the "Favourites" menu *C*;
- the keys on the number keypad from the "Keyboard" menu **D**.

"Call in progress" screen



- *1.* Contact name and telephone number.
- 2. Duration of current call.
- 3. Put current call on hold.
- 4. Transfer the call to the phone.
- 5. Hang up.

6. Access the keypad to dial a number.

7. Deactivate/activate the microphone.

Receiving a call





When receiving a call, the "Calls received" screen is displayed and it shows the following information:

- the name of the contact (if the number is present in the list of favourites number or in your phonebook);

- the caller's number (if the number is not present in your phonebook);

- "Private number" (if the number cannot be shown).

"Answer"

To answer a call, press the control **10** on the steering wheel or on the "Answer" button **8** on the multimedia system screen.

"Reject" a call

To reject an incoming call, press twice on the steering wheel control *10* or press the "Reject" button *9* on the multimedia system screen.

The person calling you will be redirected to your voicemail.

During a call



During a call you can:

- adjust the volume using the control buttons on the steering column or using the volume buttons on the multimedia screen;

- end a call by pressing "End call"

5 or by pressing button **10** on the steering wheel;

- place a call on hold by pressing button **3**. To resume the call, press button **3** again;

- transfer the call to the connected phone by pressing the "Transfer to phone" button **4**;

- answer a second call and switch between two calls by pressing *11*;

- as soon as you answer the second incoming call, the first call will be put on hold automatically;

- during a call, you can receive a second call but you cannot make a second call.

access the digital keypad by pressing the "Keyboard" button 6;
deactivate/activate your microphone by pressing the "Mute" button 7.

During a call, you can change the World without ending the call in progress.

Press the "Phone" World to return.

End a call

To end the call in progress, hang up by pressing the control **10** on the steering wheel or the "End call" button **5** on the multimedia system screen.

Phonebook



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.



Certain features are only available while the vehicle is stationary.

"Phonebook" menu



From the "Phone" World



press the "Contacts" tab **B** to access your phonebook via your multimedia system.

To enable the multimedia system to manage phones equipped with "dual SIM", configure your phone to enable the multimedia system to access the correct phonebook on the phone.

1. Telephone connected.

2. Search for a contact by name or number.

3. Detailed contact information.

4. List of contacts in the connected phone.

Downloading the phone memo-ГV

By default, when connecting a telephone, the contacts are synchronised automatically if handsfree connection is activated. For more information, please refer to "Connecting, disconnecting a telephone" **→ 56**.

Note: to access the phonebook via the multimedia system, you will need to authorise data sharing on your telephone. Refer to the "Pairing, unpairing a phone" section → 55 and your phone user manual.

Contacts "Favourites"



From the "Phone" World press the "Favourites" tab *C* to access the contacts saved in the phone favourites or add manually from the multimedia system "Contacts" list.

Add a contact "Favourites"



Press "Add a favourite" 5 to add a contact to the "Favourites" list. then follow the instructions displayed on the multimedia screen.

You can also add a favourite number for the contact by selecting the star **6**.

Searching contacts

You can search for a contact by entering their name or phone number.

Press the magnifying glass 2. Enter some of the numbers or letters of the desired contact using the digital keypad which appears on the screen. The phonebook displays the list of contacts starting with the first letter entered.

Confidentiality

No copies of your contacts or personal data will be saved in the multimedia system.

For reasons of confidentiality, each downloaded contacts list can only be viewed when the corresponding telephone is connected.

Call loa

Access the "Recent calls" historу

From the "Phone" World



press the "Recent calls" tab A to access the history of all your calls.

The call log is displayed from the most recent to the oldest.

"Recent calls" menu



1. Number label

- 2. Contact name or phone number.
- 3. Call time/date.
- 4. Access contact details.

5. Outgoing call (green upwards arrow).

6. Incoming call (green downwards arrow).

7. Missed call (red arrow).

Note: depending on the multimedia screen, some information may not be available.

Browsing the call log

Swipe the screen up or down to scroll through the list of calls.

Making a call from the call log

Press one of the contacts or numbers to call. The call will be started automatically.

Dial number

For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.



1. Number dialled.

- 2. Delete the numbers.
- 3. Contacts suggestion.
- 4. Call.
- 5. Digital keypad

Access "Keyboard"

From the "Phone" world press the "Keyboard" tab **D**.

Making a call by dialling a number

From the "Keyboard" tab **D**, dial the number using the keypad **5** then press button **4** to start the call.

From the moment the first entry is made, the multimedia system suggests a list of your contacts with the same series of numbers *3*.

Select the contact that you wish to call, then press button *4* to start the call.

Enter a number using voice control

You can dictate a number using the voice control included with your multimedia system. To do this, start the voice command then, after the beep, state: - "Call", then dictate the phone number that you wish to call; or

- "Call" followed by the name of the contact that you wish to call.

The multimedia system displays the number provided and begins to call it.

Note: if your contact has several phone numbers (work, home, mobile, etc.), you can make a choice. For example: "Call - Grégory home".

For more information on the voice command, refer to the section on "Using voice recognition" \Rightarrow 21.

4

Depending on the make and model of your phone, certain functions may not work.



1. Name/number of the sender of the message.

- 2. Time received;
- 3. Start of the message.

Note: previewing messages is not allowed while driving.

Access the "SMS"

From the notification centre A, you can access your telephone

SMS received via the multimedia system.

Your telephone must be connected to the hands-free phone system. You must also authorise the transfer of messages (using your phone settings, depending on the model) in order to use all of its functions.

Note: depending on the equipment level, only SMS received during driving can be read by the multimedia system.

Receiving SMS



The multimedia system informs you that a new SMS has been received, via a warning message at *B* that is shown in any menu that is open. You can deactivate the conversation and stop the notifications by pressing the button **4**.

By default, after pairing and the telephone connection, when a new message is received, it will be available on the multimedia system.

Note: only the messages received after pairing and while the phone is being connected to the multimedia system will be available.

Reading SMS

The multimedia system can use a synthetic voice to read out the SMS upon reception: press the "Play" button displayed on the multimedia screen, then reply.

You can also deactivate the conversation and prevent notifications from being displayed by pressing the "Deactivate the conversation" button.

To stop the SMS from being read, say "Ok Google Stop".

Responding to SMS

The multimedia system enables you to respond to SMS using only voice recognition.

SMS

For more information on the voice command, refer to the section on "Using voice recognition" \rightarrow 21.

PHONE SETTINGS



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.

These features are only available while the vehicle is stationary.

"Settings" menu



With the phone connected to the system, from the "Phone" World



, press the "Settings" icon

 \mathbf{x}_{i}

From the "Settings" menu you can access the following settings:

- "Telephone connected";
 - "Active call";
 - "Confidentiality";
- "Home screen";
- "Contact list order";
- « Devices Manager » ;
- "Bluetooth® settings".

"Home screen"

This setting can be used to select the tab which will be displayed

when the "Phone" World home screen is launched:

- "Recent" (default);
- "Contacts";
- « Favourites » ;
- « Keyboard ».

"Contact list order"

This setting can be used to display contacts in alphabetical order, categorised by:

- "First name";
- « Name ».

Note: the selection will take effect the next time the multimedia system is restarted.

"Phone ringtone"



From the "Vehicle" World **Press**, press the "Settings" menu, then "Sound", you can:

- adjust the "Incoming call volume" **2**;
- select the type of "Phone ring-tone" **3**.

For more information, please refer to the "System settings" section → 108.

WIRELESS CHARGER

Induction charging area

It is essential not to i leave any objects (USBdrive, SD card, starting card, credit card, jewellery, keys, coins, etc.) in the induction charging zone 1 when charging your phone. Remove any magnetic cards or credit cards from the phone case before positioning your telephone in the induction charging area 1.



Objects left in the induction charging area 1 may overheat. It is advisable to place them in the other storage areas provided. (storage compartment, sun visor storage compartment, etc.)



The induction charging area 1 can be used to charge a telephone without a cable

The charging area is identified by:

- an associated symbol;

and/or

- the charging status is automatically displayed on the screen as long as the phone is positioned in the dedicated area.

Its location may vary depending on the vehicle. Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information.

Note:

- the induction charging is initiated when the ignition is switched on or when the engine is on;

- ensure that your phone is compatible with inductive charaina. For more details on the list of compatible phones, please contact an approved dealer:

- to enable optimal charaina, it is preferable to remove the protective case from your phone before charaina:

- for optimal charging, the entire surface of the smartphone should coincide with a maximum of the surface of the charging area and be positioned the most central possible.

Charging procedure

Place your phone in the induction charging zone 1. Charging is automatically started and the charaina progress 2 is displayed on the screen.

The charging procedure may be interrupted if an object is detected in the induction charging area 1 or if the induction charging area *1* is overheating. Once the temperature has dropped, your phone will soon start to charge again.

WIRELESS CHARGER

Charging progress



The multimedia system informs you of your phone's charging status **2**:

- charging complete 3;
- charging in progress 4;

- object detected in the charging area/object overheating/charging procedure interrupted **5**.

Note: the multimedia system will inform you if the phone charging procedure is interrupted.

Depending on the equipment, an colour indicator light located near the charging zone also informs you of the charging status:

- green when charging is complete;

- yellow when charging is in progress;

- flashes yellow, accompanied by a message on the multimedia screen, when a metal object is detected in the induction charging zone;

- flashes yellow, accompanied by a message on the multimedia screen and a beep, when the car is stopped and the driver opens the door;

- yellow or green switched off, accompanied by a message on the multimedia screen, when the charging zone temperature is too high.

ANDROID AUTOM, CARPLAYM

Smartphone replication

When you use the "Android Auto™" app or the "CarPlay[™]" service, you are using your smartphone's internet connection (subject to charges and limitations imposed by your mobile operator).



The "Android Auto™" app and the "CarPlay™" service functions may vary depending on the make and model of your smartphone. For further information, please refer to the manufacturer's website if there is one.











This function enables you to replicate your smartphone in order to use some of its apps and functions on the multimedia system screen, via:





Note: when you use "Android AutoTM" or "CarPlavTM", you can access your smartphone's navigation and music apps.

These applications will replace similar applications integrated into your multimedia system which are already running.

Only one navigation system can be used amona:

- « Android Auto™ » ;
- « CarPlay™ »;

- the one included in your multimedia system.

Note: when you are using the "Android Auto™" application or the "CarPlavTM" service, certain multimedia system functions will continue to run in the background. For example, if you start "Android Auto™" or "CarPlay™" and use the navigation on your smartphone while the radio on the multimedia system is currently playing, the radio will continue to be broadcast.

ANDROID AUTOM, CARPLAYM

IntroductionAndroid AutoTM



"Android Auto[™]" is an app that enables you to replicate your smartphone on the screen of your multimedia system.

Note:

- the "Android Auto™" app only works if your smartphone is connected to your vehicle's USB port or wirelessly by Bluetooth® to enable automatic WIFI connection to your system;

- to ensure that the app functions correctly, it is advisable to use USB cables recommended by the smartphone manufacturer.

First use

If you haven't done already, download and install the "Android Auto™" app via vour compatible smartphone's app download platform.

Connect your smartphone to your multimedia system USB port or connect it using Bluetooth® to automatically initiate the WIFI connection

Accept the requests on your smartphone in order to use the application.

Note: you can check the compatibility of your smartphone and its version of Android using the "Android Auto™" service: consult the Google® documentation.

The multimedia system suggests that you use the "Android Auto™" service.

The application is launched on the multimedia system and should be visible from area A. Smartphone replication replaces the "Phone"

world



appears.

and the icon **1**



If the procedure described above fails, repeat the operation.

Once used for the first time. smartphone replication will launch automatically for further sessions.

From the "Applications" world

, then "Devices Manager", vou can also activate/deactivate the smartphone replication by pressing the "Android Auto™" repli-



Exit replication

To exit "Android Auto™" wireless replication:

- press "Exit car mode" on the vour smartphone notifications screen:

- deactivate the smartphone replication by pressing the "Android

Auto[™]" replication icon or



activate the "Phone" service from the "Devices Manager":

- select the approved dealer's app among the smartphone replication apps.
ANDROID AUTOM, CARPLAYM

IntroductionCarPlay[™]



"CarPlay™" is a pre-installed service on your smartphone which enables you to use some apps on your smartphone via your multimedia system screen.

Note:

- the "CarPlay™" service only works if the SIRI service is activated, if the vehicle microphone is activated and if your smartphone is connected to your vehicle's USB port or wirelessly using Bluetooth® to enable automatic connection to vour system by WIFI:

- to ensure that the app functions correctly, it is advisable to use USB cables recommended by the smartphone manufacturer.

First use

Connect your smartphone to your multimedia system USB port or connect using Bluetooth® to enable automatic WIEL connection to vour system.

The multimedia system suggests that you:

- authorise the connection and data sharina:
- automatically connect to the "CarPlayTM" service for future sessions.

Note: if you do not allow the multimedia system to remember these choices, a reminder message will be displayed each time vou start.

Accept the requests on your smartphone in order to use the application.

The service is launched on the multimedia system and should be visible from area **B**. The smartphone replication replaces the "Phone"





appears.

If the procedure described above fails, repeat the operation.

From the "Applications" world



, then "Devices Manager",

you can also activate/deactivate the smartphone replication by pressing the "CarPlay™" replica-



Exit replication

To exit "CarPlay™" wireless replication:

- deactivate the WIFI on your smartphone;

- deactivate the smartphone replication by pressing the "CarPlay™"

replication icon C or activate

🕒 from the the "Phone" service "Devices Manager":

- select the approved dealer's app among the smartphone replication apps.

ANDROID AUTO™, CARPLAY™

Voice recognition



Press and hold the control **3** to activate/deactivate your smartphone's voice recognition function for controlling certain apps and functions by voice command.

For more information, see the section on "Using voice recognition" → 21.

Android Auto™



Using "Android Auto™" replication, you can also command some of the functions on your smartphone:

- by pressing the voice recognition button *4*;

- by stating the "Ok Google" or

"Hey Google" voice command.

СагРІау™



Using "CarPlayTM" replication, you can also command some of the functions on your smartphone:

- by pressing and holding button **5**;

- by stating the "Dis Siri" or "Say Siri" voice command, if the vehicle's microphone is activated **6**.

APP MANAGEMENT

"Applications" World



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.



Some settings are only available while the vehicle is stationary.

61.	18.9				10°C 08:08
	Applications				
88		C	9		
		Apple CarPlay	Gestionnal d'appareit	re . s	Play Store
85					
63	0				
20°°	8 2 A		Current and a second se	0	13
1					

From the "Applications" you can access:



- the apps installed on your multimedia system;
- smartphone replication;
- "Devices Manager";
- "Play Store™";
- ...

Note: some services will be available free of charge for a trial period.

You can download new apps via the "Play Store™" app.

"Applications" menu

You can access the apps installed on your multimedia system.

The two first lines are dedicated to apps pre-installed by default.

Any other apps downloaded from the "Play Store™" will be listed in alphabetical order.

If the app is not available, it will not be displayed.

Press the app to open it.



By pressing and holding the app, you can:

- "Delete" the app **2**;

- access information on the app **3** (version, validity or creation date, title, etc.);

- force the app to close 4.

Note: only apps installed from the "Play StoreTM" can be deleted.

"Applications" settings

You can access the "Applications" information and settings from the "Settings" menu via:



- the "Applications" World then the "Settings" app;



5

APP MANAGEMENT

- the "Vehicle" World 🖾 , then



"Settings":

- the notification centre, then the

"Settings" icon

Location of the "Applications"

ő 🖡 -	18.1						10°C	08:01
ŵ		Posit						
53								
C'		Dema	indes de	localisatio	n récentes			
		Autor	isations	des applis				
B	ì	Autor	isations	des applis				
8	> 0	Autor Les se les rés	isations rvices de l eaux mot	des applis localisation j iles et les ca				

From the "Settings" menu, select "Location", then "App permissions" 5 to configure the location permissions for the apps installed on your multimedia system.

"Apps and notifications"

From the "Settings" menu, then "Apps and notifications", you can access information and settings

for the "Applications" installed on vour multimedia system:

- "Display all apps":
- "Default apps";
- "App permissions":

- "Specific access rights granted to apps".

"Display all apps"

You can access information on all the apps present in your multimedia system:

- title of apps:
- size of apps:
- version of apps;
- app validity or creation date:
- ...

"Default apps"

You can access the default apps used for:

- the home screen:
- assistance:
- the SMS:
- the telephone;
- the navigation system.

You can also configure the opening of the app access links.

"App permissions"

You can access the app usage permissions for the following purposes:

- "Physical activity";
- "Calendar":
- "Camera":
- "Body sensors";
- "Contacts":

- ...

"Specific access rights granted to apps"

You can activate/deactivate the specific access rights granted to apps used for:

- "Changing the system settings";
- "Accessing notifications":
- "Accessing premium SMS";
- "Accessing user information":
- "WIFI control".

MY ALPINE

Introduction

When you use the "My Alpine" app, you are using your phone's internet connection (subject to charges and limitations imposed by your mobile operator).

Your "My Alpine" customer account can be accessed by downloading the "My Alpine" app to your smartphone.

Note:

- the "My Alpine" app undergoes continuous development. Connect regularly to enhance your account with new features;

- for more information on compatible phones, please contact an approved dealer;

- for further information, please contact an approved dealer.

From your "My Alpine" customer account you can interact with your vehicle and get information:

- view your vehicle information;

 access the history and calendar of your interviews and make an appointment;

- locate the place where your vehicle is parked;

- activate your vehicle's horn and lights remotely;

- view and manage your contracts and services;

- consult the vehicle E-Guide;

- locate an approved dealer nearby;

- ...

Note:

- certain functions depend on the vehicle equipment, subscription to service contracts and the laws in the country;

- some functions can only be accessed from your smartphone using the "My Alpine" app;

- the services must be activated in order to enable remote control of the vehicle. Please see the section on "Activating services" **→ 10**.

Connected services in "My Alpine"

For electric vehicles

You can benefit from the connected services in your "My Alpine" app, such as: - check the battery level and charging status;

- programme charging;

- launch/programme the air conditioning or heating system;

- access the "Mobilize charge pass" (charging station payment method);

- find available recharging terminals nearby;

- plan a route, identifying the recharging terminals along your route;

- ...

Note: the charging, air conditioning and heating programming functions are only available on certain vehicles. For further information, please contact an approved dealer.

Create a "My Alpine" user account

To access the "My Alpine" functions, you must create a user account via the website or the "My Alpine" app.

From the website:

- select "Create Account" from the home page;

- enter the information required to create the account.

From the app:

MY ALPINE

- select "Register" from the main menu of the application;
- enter the information required to create the account.
- A confirmation email will be sent to the email address previously provided.
- To complete the creation of your "My Alpine" account, click on the link in the confirmation email.

Note: you can use the same username and password to log in to your web user account.

Synchronise your "My Alpine" account to your vehicle

In order to use the "My Alpine" app and interact with your vehicle, you must synchronise the "My Alpine" app with your vehicle. Synchronisation takes place automatically when you launch your app.

Note:

5

- if you want to synchronise the "My Alpine" app with your vehicle, you must be present in your vehicle with the multimedia system switched on and parked in an area with network coverage;

- the connection to the "My Alpine" account is available only from the administrator profile; - if your "My Alpine" app is not synchronised with your vehicle, you will not be able to access your service contracts.



From the notifications centre which can be accessed by pressing *t*, select your "Profile", "My Alpine account", then follow the instructions displayed on the multimedia system screen.

Once your "My Alpine" account is associated with the multimedia system, the synchronisation will take place automatically when you launch your app.

Register your vehicle in your "My Alpine"

If you have already synchronised your "My Alpine" account with your vehicle, the registration is done automatically.

You can also register your vehicle in your "My Alpine" account from your "My Alpine" account by clicking on "Add a vehicle" and adding the VIN (vehicle identification number) or vehicle registration number manually or by scanning it.

Renewing a service

To renew one of your services approaching expiry, go to your "My Alpine" account, then select "My services".

Then click "Renew" and follow the step-by-step instructions.

VEHICLE LOANING AND RELINQUISHING

Vehicle lending

Legal information

When you lend your vehicle, you are obliged (see the General Conditions of Sale of the connected services) to inform the person to whom you are lending your vehicle that the vehicle will be connected and collecting personal information such as the vehicle's location.

Data collection

The collection of vehicle data may be temporarily suspended.

To do this, when the vehicle is started and the "Security and Confidentiality" window is displayed on the centre screen, select "OFF" to suspend data collection.

The services will be disabled, except for the functions that are required or related to safety such as the automatic emergency call in the event of an accident.

Vehicle relinquishment

When relinquishing the vehicle, you must inform the new buyer that this vehicle is connected and collects personal data such as the vehicle's location.

Deleting personal data

When the vehicle is relinquished (e.g. resale, purchase), it is essential to delete all personal information stored within and outside the vehicle.

To do this, reset the on-board system and delete the vehicle from your "My Alpine" account.

Resetting the system

When the vehicle is relinquished, the seller must reset the system. To do this, switch on your vehicle's multimedia system.

From the "Vehicle" World From the "Vehicle" World From , "Settings", "System", "Resetting options", then "Restore factory settings" (delete data).

Note: it is only possible to reset the system from the administrator profile.

Deleting a vehicle from your My Alpine account

When relinquishing your vehicle, it is also necessary to delete it from your "My Alpine" account.

To do this, log in to your "My Alpine" account, select the relevant vehicle in your virtual garage and then click on "Delete this vehicle" at the bottom of the home page.

"Driving assistance" menu



These functions provide additional driving aids

Therefore, under no circumstances can they replace the driver's vigilance and responsibility (the driver must always be ready to brake).



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.

Some driving aid services are only available by subscription and accessible during a defined time period. You can extend your subscription period via the website: www.my.alpinecars.fr



Some settings have to be modified while the enaine is on in order for them to be stored by the multimedia system.

Introduction

The vehicle is equipped with driving aids that offer additional assistance when driving your vehicle.

Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information.

Note: some "Driving assistance" settings are available while the vehicle is stationary.

Access the "Driving assistance"







« Security »



From the "Vehicle" World E, select "Driving assistance", then the "Security" tab *A* for safety driving aids or the "Comfort" tab *B* for comfort driving aids.

The "Parking" tab *C* is intended for parking aids.

For more information on the "Parking" tab C, please refer to the section on "Parking aids") \rightarrow 83.



Using the "Security" tab **A**, you can activate/deactivate and/or con-

figure the safety-related driving aids:

- "All on" 1;
- « Perso » **2** ;
- « Configure My Safety Perso » **3** ;
 - « Overspeed audible warning » ;
 - « Limitation change sound » ;
 - « Lane departure prevention » ;
 - "Operations on broken lines";
 - « Departure anticipation » ;
 - « Vibration » ;
 - "Emergency lane departure prevention";
 - « Blind spot warning » ;
 - « Driver monitoring alert » ;
- « Traction control » ;
- « Active braking» ;
 - « Warning anticipation » ;
- « Pedestrian detection » ;
- « Pedestrian alert sound » ;
- « Blind spot warning » ;
- ...

Note: the activate/deactivate button is highlighted when the function is activated.

"My Safety"

"All on" *1*

When My Safety "All on" is activated, all your safety aids are activated. This mode is activated by default each time the vehicle is started.

The My Safety "All on" function can also be activated by pressing

your vehicle's Ocontrol once.

For more information on the control, please see the "My Safety" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Perso » 2

When the My Safety "Perso" function is activated, the safety aids that you have configured and customised using "Configure My Safety Perso" **3** are enabled.

The My Safety "Perso" function can also be activated by pressing

your vehicle's

control twice.

For more information on the control, please see the "My Safety" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Configure My Safety Perso » 3



From this menu, you can select and/or configure the functions that you want to enable when you activate My Safety "Perso":

- « Overspeed audible warning » ;
- « Limitation change sound »;
- « Lane departure prevention » ;
- "Operations on broken lines";
 - « Departure anticipation » ;
 - « Vibration » ;

- "Emergency lane departure prevention";

- « Blind spot warning » ;
- « Driver monitoring alert » ;

- ...

« Overspeed audible warning »

This function warns the driver with an audible alert when the vehicle

exceeds the authorised speed limit.

« Limitation change sound »

This function warns the driver by an audible alert when the authorised speed limit changes.

« Lane departure prevention»

This function enables vibrations on the steering wheel (or by an audible warning, depending on equipment) to warn the driver if the vehicle strays out of lane and breaches a line (continuous or broken) without the direction indicators having been activated.

For further information, please refer to the "Lane Departure Warning" section in the vehicle user manual.

"Operations on broken lines"

This function corrects the vehicle's trajectory when it strays out of lane and crosses a broken line without the direction indicator lights having been activated if there is an imminent risk of impact (e.g. risk of hitting another vehicle when changing lanes without the direction indicator lights having been activated).

You can choose the desired vehicle system sensitivity:

- « Early » ;
- « Standard » ;
- « Late ».

You can also choose the desired vibration intensity:

- « Low » ;
- « Standard » ;
- « High ».

"Emergency lane departure prevention"

This function warns the driver by vibrations on the steering wheel (or an audible alert, depending on equipment) when the vehicle strays out of lane and breaches line (continuous or discontinuous) without the direction indicator lights having been activated if there is a risk of impact (e.g. risk of hitting another vehicle when changing lanes without the direction indicator lights having been activated).

For further information, please refer to the "Lane Departure Warning" section in the vehicle user manual.

« Blind spot warning »

This function notifies the driver when another vehicle is in their blind spot.

For further information, please refer to the "Blind spot warning" section in the vehicle user manual.

« Driver monitoring alert »

This function detects any reduction in the driver's reactivity. It takes into account:

- sudden and random movement of the steering wheel;

- frequent activation of the Lane Keeping Assist warning.

This function notifies the driver via a sound warning and by displaying a warning message on the instrument panel advising the driver to take a break.

For further information, please refer to the "Driver vigilance warning" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Traction control »

This function limits the wheelspin of the drive wheels and controls the vehicle when pulling away, accelerating or decelerating. For further information, please refer to the "Driver correction devices and aids" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Active braking »

From this menu you can activate/ deactivate the "Active braking" function. You can also choose the sensitivity of the warning trigger by pressing "Warning anticipation":

- « Early » ;
- « Standard » ;
- « Late ».

For more information, please see the "Advanced safety" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Pedestrian detection »

This function detects and warns the driver when there is a risk of collision with a pedestrian.

For further information, please refer to the "Safe passenger exit" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Pedestrian alert sound »

This feature warns the driver with an audible alert when there is a risk of collision with a pedestrian.

For further information, please refer to the "Safe passenger exit" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Comfort »



Using the "Comfort" tab **B**, you can activate/deactivate and/or configure the comfort-related driving aids:

- « Following distance » ;
- « Display risky areas » ;
- "Adaptive speed limiter" or

"Adaptive speed limiter and cruise control *", depending on the equipment;

- "Road layout adaptive cruise control*";

```
- ...
```

Note: the activate/deactivate button is highlighted when the function is activated.

« Following distance »

This function notifies the driver if they are too close to another vehicle.

For further information, please refer to the "Safe distance alert" section in your vehicle user manual.

« Display risky areas »

This function enables the display of risky areas.

For more information, please refer to the "Stop and GoAdaptive cruise control" and "Road sign detection" sections in the vehicle's Driver's Handbook.

"Adaptive speed limiter" or "Adaptive speed limiter and cruise control *"

(depending on equipment)

This function allows you to limit and regulate the speed of your vehicle according to the road.

For more information, please refer to the "Stop and GoAdaptive cruise control" and "Road sign detection" sections in the vehicle's Driver's Handbook.

"Road layout adaptive cruise control*"

This function allows you to regulate the speed of your vehicle according to the road layout (e.g. roundabout, bend, etc.).

For more information, please refer to the "Stop and Go Adaptive cruise control" section in your vehicle user manual.

PARKING AIDS

Introduction



These functions provide additional driving aids

Therefore, under no circumstances can they replace the driver's vigilance and responsibility (the driver must always be ready to brake).



When manoeuvring, the steering wheel may turn quickly: do not put your hands inside and make sure that nothing is caught inside.



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.

The vehicle is equipped with parking aids that offer additional assistance during parking manoeuvres.

Depending on the equipment, from

the "Vehicle" world

press the

"Driving assistance" menu then the "Parkina" tab to access the Park Assist menu.

Conting

Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information.

"Parking" menu

Securite

医

Avant

Latéra

882

mation, please refer to the "Parking assistance" section in your vehicle user manual.





1. « Front ».

6

From the "Vehicle" World press the "Driving assistance" menu, then the "Parking" tab C. Use this menu to access the Park Assist settings. For further infor-



2.3

C

PARKING AIDS

2. « Side ».

3. « Sound ».

4. « Sound type ».

5. « Volume ».

6. « Rear Cross Parking Alert ».

7. « Rear Active Emergency Braking ».

8. « Occupant Safe Exit ».

"Parking assistance" detection areas

You can activate or deactivate the following Park Assist zones:

- « Front » 1 ;
- « Side » **2**.

6

« Sound » 3

Press "Sound" *3* to activate or deactivate the Park Assist sound warnings.

The following settings can be modified:

- "Sound type" **4**: select the type of audible warning among those offered;

- "Volume": adjust the obstacle detection warning volume using the "Volume" bar **5**.

« Rear Cross Parking Alert » 6

The "Rear Cross Parking Alert" function *6* detects obstacles as they approach the side of the vehicle from behind.

It is activated when reverse gear is engaged and the vehicle is stationary or moving at a low speed.

You will be notified of approaching obstacles by a continuous beep as well as a display on the multimedia screen and a light signal on the rear view mirror.

Note: stationary obstacles are not detected.

For more information on the "Rear Cross Parking Alert" function, please see the section on "Rear Cross Parking Alert" in your vehicle user manual.

« Rear Active Emergency Braking » 7

When the reverse gear is engaged, the "Rear Active Emergency Braking" **7** detects stationary obstacles behind your vehicle.

For more information on the "Rear Active Emergency Braking" function, please see the section on "Rear Active Emergency Braking" in your vehicle user manual.

« Occupant Safe Exit » 8

The "Occupant Safe Exit" warning **8** detects a potential hazard and warns the driver and/or passenger(s) if they open a door while the vehicle is stationary.

This is activated when the vehicle is parked.

If an obstacle approaches the vehicle, a warning will be displayed on the instrument panel, a light signal will appear on the door mirrors and inside of the doors and a beep will sound.

Note: stationary obstacles and pedestrians are not detected.

For more information on the "Occupant Safe Exit" function, please see the section on "Occupant Safe Exit" in your vehicle user manual.

"Hands-free Park Assist" menu

The "Hands-free Park Assist" function assists you with parking manoeuvres by taking control of the steering wheel, the brakes, the engine and the gear lever.

Throughout the manoeuvre, follow the instructions shown on the multimedia system screen (eg. "Select reverse gear", "Reverse" etc.) and

PARKING AIDS

take your hands off the steering wheel.

You can retake control of the vehicle at any time by operating the steering wheel.

You can access the "Hands-free Park Assist" menu from:

- the "Vehicle" World

🕄 , press

the "Driving assistance" menu, then the "Parking" tab **C**;

- the "Hands-free Park Assist" widget by pressing "Open" " (to configure, see the "Add and manage widgets" section → 19);

- the "Favourites" button on the steering wheel (to configure, see the "User settings" section \rightarrow 104).



From this menu, you can choose the following manoeuvres:

- parallel parking 9;

- perpendicular parking 10;

- moving out of a parallel parking space *11*.

For further information, please refer to the "Hands-free Park Assist" section in your vehicle user manual.

Using the icon *12*, you can select the default manoeuvre type:

- « Parallel parking » ;

or

- « Bay parking ».

Depending on the equipment, different views are displayed on the multimedia system screen during the manoeuvre:

- gauge indicating the progress of the manoeuvre;

- the manoeuvre direction instructions;

 view of the vehicle, surrounding environment and available parking spaces;

- front/rear camera view.

If the conditions required for the operation are not met, a warning message is displayed on the screen. To cancel the current manoeuvre, press "Cancel the manoeuvre".

REVERSING CAMERA



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.



pressing the "Settings" icon

For further information on the reversing camera, please see your vehicle user manual.

Note:

- make sure that the cameras are not obscured (by dirt, mud, snow, etc.);

- the reversing camera display is no longer available (it is replaced by a black screen) when the vehicle speed is above approximately 6 mph (10 km/h), depending on local regulations.

"Image settings"

When the reverse gear is engaged, the reversing camera located at the rear of the vehicle is activated in order to transmit the view behind the vehicle to the multimedia screen.

When the reversing camera is displayed on the multimedia screen, you can access the settings by



You can adjust the following settings:

- brightness 2;
- contrast 3;
- colour 4.

To exit the settings, press 9.

"Guide lines"

You can activate or deactivate:

- the moving guide lines *5* indicating the vehicle's trajectory according to the steering wheel position;

- the fixed guide lines **6** indicating the distance behind the vehicle;

- the trailer's moving guide lines 7 indicating the trailer's trajectory according to the steering wheel position.

"Auto zoom"

(depending on equipment) You can activate or deactivate "Auto zoom" **8**.

DRIVE MODE

"DRIVE MODE" menu



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.



From the "Vehicle" world you can access the "DRIVE MODE", from the "Drive Mode" menu 1. This menu lets you customise the behaviour of some on-board systems.

Configure

Nu

1197

Selecting mode

Drive Mode

21

\$82

20%

Available modes may vary according to the vehicle and equipment level. From the "Drive Mode" menu 1, select the mode desired:

- « Save » :
- « Normal » :
- « Sport »;
- « Perso ».



10°C 07.40

.

7.8

.

For more information on each of these modes, please see your vehicle user manual.

« Configure »

Select the desired mode, then press "Configure" 2 to customise the various parameters of the following on-board systems:

- « Steering effort » :
- « Climate » :
- « Ambient lighting » ;
- ...

Note:

- some configuration menus may vary depending on the vehicle and the equipment level:

- you can also access the various modes by pressing your vehicle's "DRIVE MODE" control repeatedly. Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information

DRIVE MODE

Configure "DRIVE MODE"



The configuration screen "DRIVE MODE" contains the following tabs:

- "Driving" **3** shows the functions related to driving the vehicle;

- "Life on board" *4* shows the functions related to the on-board experience.

Note: the available settings may vary according to the "DRIVE MODE" mode, your vehicle model and equipment level.

From the tab **5**, you can "Reset mode settings".

"Driving" settings



From the "Driving" menu *3*, you can configure the following equipment:

- « Engine » ;
- « Engine Sound » ;
- « Alpine Drive sound » ;
- « Steering effort » ;

- ...

« Engine »

This menu offers several engine response settings:

- « Normal » ;
- « Sport » ;
- « Eco ».

Depending on the setting selected, the power and engine torque be-

come more noticeable and responsive.

« Engine Sound »

This menu gives you different engine sound levels for the passenger compartment:

- « Low » ;
- « High » ;
- « OFF ».

« Alpine Drive sound »

(depending on equipment)

This menu offers you different types of sound generated in the passenger compartment, such as acceleration noise, braking noise, and the activation of the Overtake and the Launch Control:

- "Alpine";
- « Alternate ».

« Steering effort »

This menu offers several steering response settings:

- « Low » ;
- « Middle » ;
- « High ».

Depending on the setting selected, the steering sensitivity can be adjusted to become more reactive or heavier in order to provide optimal

DRIVE MODE

balance between a smooth and accurate steering experience.

"Life on board" settings



From the "Life on board" menu 4, you can configure the following equipment:

- « Ambient lighting » ;
- « Light intensity »;
- « Climate » ;
- ...

For more information on "Ambient lighting" and "Light intensity", please refer to the "Ambient lighting" section **→ 90**.

AMBIENT LIGHTING



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.

From the "Vehicle" world , press the "Configure" button in the "DRIVE MODE" menu, the "Life on board" tab then "Ambient lighting".

Use this menu to customise the ambient lighting in the passenger compartment:

« Ambient lighting »

To change your vehicle's ambient lighting colour, press one of the colours among those offered on the circular palette *1* by moving button **2**.

The inner circle *3* represents the ambient colour of the multimedia screen and the instrument panel in your vehicle.

Press "OK" to confirm your choice of colour or press "Cancel" to discard the colour selected.

« Light intensity »

"DRIVE MODE" menu, the "Life on board" tab then "Light intensity".

Move the cursor *4* on the brightness bar to adjust the ambient lighting brightness.

Note: the ambient lighting brightness is stored and associated to the vehicle day or night mode as set when adjusted.



You can control the intensity of the ambient lighting.

From the "Vehicle" world From the "Vehicle" world From , press the "Configure" button in the

6



ALPINE TELEMETRICS



The availability of Alpine Telemectrics depends on the country in which the vehicle is sold and/or your vehicle's equipment level.

Alpine Telemetrics consists of:

- an on-board app in your vehicle's multimedia system;

and

- a mobile app to download onto your smartphone.

Note:

- if you have not subscribed to option Alpine Telemetrics, you have a discovery version of this option, with a few features:

- to use the Alpine Telemetrics app, you first need to create and pair your "Google®" with the vehicle **→ 10**:

- to take advantage of all the functions, you need to pair your smartphone with the multimedia system via the appAlpine Telemetrics.



Precautions when operating the system Operate the controls and read the informa-

tion on the screen only when road conditions allow

Alpine telemetrics menu



From the "Vehicle" World you can access the menu Alpine Telemetrics 1.

The menu Alpine Telemetrics contains the following tabs:

- "Live Data" A:
- "Coaching" B;

- "Challenges" C.

First use

Press the "Live Data" tab A, then accept the Terms of Use and give permissions to the service Alpine Telemetrics by following the instructions shown on the multimedia screen.

Fach "Profile" user will be able to access the app Alpine Telemetrics and retain the information associated with their profile \rightarrow 104.

Live Data



From the "Live Data" menu A, you can access the following tabs:

- "Agility" D;

ALPINE TELEMETRICS

- "Power" **E**;
- "Endurance" F;
- "Circuit" **G**.

You can save your driving data by pressing **2**.

Saving driving data 2

To use driving data recording, download and install the "Alpine Telemetrics" app from your smartphone's app download platform, then pair your smartphone to the multimedia system via the "Alpine Telemetrics" app by following the connection instructions displayed on your smartphone screen.

To start recording, open the "Alpine Telemetrics" app on your smartphone, then press **2**.

To stop recording, press **2** again.

You can then find the recordings on the "Alpine Telemetrics" on your smartphone and access their analyses.

By configuring video recording from the "Alpine Telemetrics" app on your smartphone, you can link the video to your driving data analyses.

Coaching



With the vehicle stationary, from the "Coaching" **B**, you can access:

- various driving tips;

- descriptions of the various elements (diagram, stopwatch, etc.) suggested by Alpine Telemetrics.

Challenges



You are responsible for carrying out the challenges in compli-

ance with the rules of conduct in force.

Some of the challenges on offer are for use on closed roads only.

A message will remind you of this once you activate these challenges.



92 - Vehicle

ALPINE TELEMETRICS



yet. Earn medals in the available challenges to unlock new ones.

"Progression" J

This menu allows you to view your status, your progress in the various challenges and the medals you have won.

From the "Challenges" menu *C*, you can access the following tabs:

- "Challenges" H;
- "Progression" J.

"Challenges" H

You have challenges to take up in the following categories:

- "Agility";
- "Power";
- "Endurance".

A detailed sheet sets out the content of each challenge, the medals to be achieved and the scores obtained.

When you start the challenges, some of them won't be accessible

TYRE PRESSURE



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.

For more information on tyre pressure, please refer to the "Tyre pressure monitoring system" section in the vehicle user manual.

From the "Vehicle" World From the "Vehicle" then the "Tyre pressure" tab to check the tyre pressure status and reset the monitoring system "Tyre pressure".

The display on your vehicle's instrument panel informs you of any tyre inflation faults.

Tyre pressure status with TPMS system



From the multimedia system, you can check the tyre pressure status.

The symbol **2** uses colours to indicate the tyre pressure status:

- green - the tyre pressure is correct or unchanged since the last re-initialisation;

- orange - the tyre pressure is insufficient;

- red - one of the tyres is punctured or very deflated;

- Grey - no information received from the tyre sensor.

For more information on the "Tyre pressure" control system installed

in your vehicle, press the **D** icon.

Reinitialising

This function enables re-initialisation by pressing the "Reset" button 1.

The resetting procedure must be carried out while the vehicle is stationary and the ignition is switched on.

Start the re-initialisation procedure by pressing "Yes" or return to the tyre pressure status by pressing "No".

When the reset is finished, a confirmation message is displayed on the screen.

MY DRIVING

"My driving" menu



Certain features are only available while the vehicle is stationary.



From the "Vehicle" world (Press "My driving" to access the following information and functions:

- start date, distance travelled and average speed of the current journey *A*;

- "Eco score" *B*;
- "Energy consumption" C.

You can also access it from the "Eco score" widget in the "Home

page" or "Navigation" world



From the "Information" icon **1** you can access information related to the "My driving".

Note: the data displayed is automatically reset when the engine has been shut down for at least two hours or when changing "Profile".

"Eco score"



From the "Eco score" view mode **B**, you can view the your driving behaviour with regard to energy saving since your departure on your current journey.

Note: the data displayed is calculated from the last vehicle data reset, either automatically after the vehicle has not been used for two hours or when the "Profile" is changed.

Using the "Information" icon **U** you can access information related to the "Eco score".

Overall score 1

This data allows you to know your overall score (from 0 to 100) on the current journey:

- score between 76 and 100: "Congratulations, you are an Eco driver";
- score between 51 and 75: "You have a normal driving style";

- score between 0 and 50: "You have a dynamic driving style".

The overall score is calculated from the sub-scores.

Calculation of sub-scores 2

Sub-scores are assessments of your driving behaviour on the current route based on the following criteria:

MY DRIVING

- "Acceleration" assesses your behaviour in relation to acceleration and speed;
- "Anticipation", assesses your ability to anticipate and avoid hard braking;
- "Gear change" assesses your behaviour regarding gear changes in relation to the gear change indicator displayed on the instrument panel;

Note: this assessment is only available with manual gearboxes.

6

....

Driving advice and style 3

Using your sub-scores, this information offers you a driving style rating to help you drive more efficiently.

To access additional advice, press "Advice".

« Energy consumption »



From the "Power consumption" view mode *C*, you can view the following energy consumption data for your driving:

- current journey data 4;
- data since the last manual reset **5**;
- history of average consumption *6*.

Using the "Information" icon **u** you can access information related to "Energy consumption".

Current journey data 4

Depending on the version, the following data may be available:

- "Average consumption";

- ...

Note: the data displayed is calculated from the last "Eco score" data reset, automatically after the vehicle has not been used for two hours and when changing "Profile".

Data since last reset 5

Depending on the version, the following data may be available:

- "Average consumption";

- consumption of air conditioning and auxiliaries;

- date of the last reset;

- ...

Note: the displayed data is reset along with the instrument panel data.

Evolution of average consumption $\boldsymbol{\delta}$

A graph shows the evolution of your average consumption per minute, over the last thirty minutes of the journey.

The row and associated value correspond to the average consumption since the last manual reset.

Note: the chart data is reset along with the data since the last manual reset.

AIR QUALITY

From the "Vehicle" world press "Air quality".



From this menu you can create a healthy atmosphere and air quality inside the passenger compartment by activating the following functions:

- « Air purifier » ;
- « Auto air recycling ».

« Air purifier »



tion" world

When the "Air purifier" button is highlighted, this indicates that the air purification cycle is in progress (approximately five minutes).



You can launch an air purification cycle using:

- the "Air purifier" button 2;

"Electric" menu



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.

Some settings are only available while the vehicle is stationary.



From the "Vehicle" world you can access the "Electric" menu.

You can use this menu to view and adjust the functions related to your electric vehicle.

From the "Electric" menu you can access the following tabs:

- "Energy" A;
- "Programmes" **B**;
- "Battery" **C**;
- "Settings" D.

« Energy »

Note: the information may vary depending on the engine of your electric vehicle.

« Programmes »





From the "Energy" tab **A**, the multimedia system enables you to view the vehicle's energy flows.



If no other programme has been set, you can set your vehicle comfort and/or charging programme from the "Programmes" tab **B**, then "My programs" or "Add".

From this menu you can view and adjust:

- information about the "Next program" *1*;

- the time setting in relating to charging programmes **2**;

- the heating comfort setting related to air conditioning programmes **3**;

- list and settings of stored "My programs" *4*;

- "Add" a schedule **5**.

For more information on the various "Programmes" functions, press

the "Information" icon



After adding a programme, you can view information on the upcoming "Next program" *1* from the "Programmes" tab *B*.

Note: charging will start if the engine is shut down, the vehicle is connected to a power supply and access is authorised. Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information.

"Add" a schedule



« Charge settings » 2



You can store up to three schedules.

To add a schedule, press "Add" *5*, then set up the following:

- the time at which the vehicle must be ready **6**;

- type of schedule, if it is a charging and/or climate control schedule 7;

- the day(s) of the week on which you wish to apply the schedule **8**. Press "Save" to confirm.



From "Charge settings" 2, you can:

- activate/deactivate "Scheduled charge" by choosing the charging

start and end time, then press "Save" to confirm;

or

- activate/deactivate the "V2G charge" service (depending on equipment). This service redistributes the energy stored in your electric vehicle's battery to your home and to the power grid. You must have a compatible two-way AC charging terminal and have subscribed to the service. See the "Mobilise" offer on the approved dealer's website. For further information, please contact your approved dealer. This function is also available from your smartphone via the "My Alpine" app.

Note:

- if the start and end times are identical, the schedule will last 24 hours;

- the "Max" battery level may not be reached if the charging schedule period is too short;

- you cannot confirm a charging schedule if you do not select a day of the week.

« Climate Settings » 3



Setting the days 8



From "Climate Settings" *3*, adjust the heating comfort temperatures:

- of the passenger compartment **9**;
- of the heated seats 10;

- of the heated steering wheel 11.

Press "Save" to confirm.

Select the days **8** for which you wish to apply the schedule.

When the day is highlighted, this indicates that it is selected.

Press "Save" to confirm.

« My programs » 4



« Battery »



From the list *4*, you can see an overview of all the active charging and/or heat level schedules.

Press one of the programmes to view, modify or delete.

You can delete a schedule by pressing the recycle bin icon *12* for the schedule to be deleted.

From the "Battery" *C*, you can configure:

- the maximum charge level of your vehicle's battery, by moving button *13*;

- the minimum level of your vehicle's battery that must not be exceeded when using the "V2G charge" and "V2L" function, by moving the button *14*.

« Settings »



From the "Settings" tab **D**, you can access the following settings:

- « Pedestrian warning sound »;
- "Plug & Charge";

- ...

« Pedestrian warning sound»

When driving, you can choose the sound of the pedestrian horn to warn other road users, especially pedestrians and cyclists, of your presence.

For further information on the pedestrian horn, please refer to the "Electric vehicle" section in the vehicle user manual.

"Plug & Charge"

You can activate/deactivate the "Plug & Charge" function, which allows you to charge your vehicle at a public charging terminal immediately after plugging in the charger. You must have previously taken out a charging contract at public charging stations and activated the "Plug & Charge" option via your "My Alpine" account. See the "Mobilize Charge Pass" offer on the "My Alpine" app or on the approved dealer's website.

For further information, please contact an approved dealer.

EMERGENCY CALL

If the vehicle is equipped with it, the emergency call system enables automatic or manual calling of the emergency services in the event of an accident or illness, in order to reduce the emergency response time.

When the emergency services have been called, the audio source/radio sound volume is automatically muted.

Use of the "Emergency call" function deactivates some multimedia system commands and menus for almost one hour in order to give priority to emergency service response telephone calls.

Please refer to the vehicle user manual for further information.

USER SETTINGS

"Vehicle" menu



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.



From the "Vehicle" World , s lect the "Vehicle" menu.

From this menu you can access the following tabs:

- "Outside" A;
- "Cockpit" B;
- "Tyre pressure" C.

Note: the availability of settings may vary according to the equipment level.

"Outside" A



« Access »

- ...

Use this menu to activate/deactivate the following options:

- « Auto door lock while driving » ;
- « Hands-free lock/unlock » :
 - « Silent mode » ;

Note: some options are available only if the previous functions are activated.

« Welcome »

Use this menu to activate/deactivate the following options:

- « External lighting sequence » ;
- « Internal sequence sound » ;
- « Automatic mirrors' unfolding » ;
- « Internal light function » ;

- ...

« Wiping »

Use this menu to activate/deactivate the following options:

- "Rear wiper when in reverse gear": the rear screen wiper is activated when reverse gear is engaged;

Note: this function only operates if the front windscreen wipers are activated.

- « Automatic front wiper » ;

- ...

USER SETTINGS

"Cockpit" B



« Display »

This menu allows you to adjust the following lighting options:

- « Multimedia: daytime brightness » ;
- « Multimedia: nighttime brightness » ;
- « Cockpit brightness » ;

- ...

Note: some options are available only if the previous functions are activated.

« Turn indicator sound volume »

Use this menu to adjust the volume of the indicators in the passenger compartment:

- « Low » ;
- « Middle » ;
- « High ».

« Favourite button on the steering wheel »

Use this menu to configure the "Favourite button on the steering wheel" by allocating its function as one of the following:

- « Heated steering wheel » ;
- « Vehicle world menu »;
- « Hands-free Park Assist » ;
- ...

Note: the available options may vary according to the equipment level.

« Edit widgets »

From this menu you can modify the widgets in the "Navigation"

world (availability depends on your vehicle's equipment):

- « Audio » ;
- « Tyre Pressure » ;
- « Google Assistant » ;

- « Date and time » ;
- « Parking » ;

- ...

"Tyre pressure" C



Use this menu to check the vehicle tyre pressure status and to carry out a reset.

For more information on tyre pressure, please see:

- the section on "Tyre pressure"
 → 94;
- your vehicle user manual.

USER SETTINGS

Menu "Profile"



When the multimedia system is started, at **D**, you can choose or add a user profile to apply to the system and to the vehicle.

Select the desired user profile.

Note: it is only possible to change the profile while the vehicle is stationary.

You can access the "Profile" menu from the notifications centre at any time by pressing the image on your profile.

Features linked to user profile

The following settings are stored in the user profile:

- system language;

- "My Alpine" account;
- Google® account;
- DRIVE MODE settings;
- settings for the terms of use of personal data;
- display settings;
- audio settings;
- navigation settings;
- navigation history;
- navigation favourites;
- ...

Note: the first profile created will be the default Administrator profile. Some settings are only available via the Administrator profile.

Add a "Profile"



To add a new "Profile", press *1* then follow the instructions displayed on the multimedia screen.

Note:

- you can add up to five "Profile";

 every time you create a new
 "Profile" a configuration is required: please see the section on
 "Activating services" → 10.

"Profile" settings




USER SETTINGS

From **2** you can access the following functions:

- « Manage profiles » ;
- « Manage accounts » ;
- « Delete profile » ;
- « Guest profile ».

To modify the current "Profile", press "Edit profile" **3** to access menu **E** and modify the following:

- « Name » ;
- « Picture » ;
- « Security » :
 - "Select locking mode";
 - "Delete ID".

- "My Alpine account" (only available on the Administrator profile);

- « Privacy terms » ;
- « Privacy settings » :
 - « Accept all » ;
 - « Refuse all » ;
 - « Customise ».

- ...

For further information, please refer to the "Activating services" section \rightarrow 10.

Profile « Guest »



The "Guest" (GUEST) profile can be used to access some of the multimedia system functions like a user profile.

To access it, press **2** then "Guest profile" or **4** during start-up.

The "Guest" profile is reset every time the system restarts and the settings are not stored.

SYSTEM SETTINGS

"Settings" menu



For safety reasons, carry out any adjustments while the vehicle is stationary.

ő I -	18.9		10°C	07:58
	← Paramètres			
53	 Son 			
R±	💎 Réseau et Internet			
d d	\$ Bluetooth			
00	• Position			
	Confidentialité			
20°°	\$2 A/C ₺	U	1.8	

From the "Vehicle" world press "Settings".

You can also access the "Settings" menu from the Notifications centre by pressing the "Settings" icon. **Note:**

(

- the availability of settings may vary according to the equipment level;

- some settings are available while the vehicle is stationary.

This menu enables you to adjust the following settings:

- « Sound » ;
- "Network and Internet";
- « Bluetooth® » ;
- "Location";
- "Confidentiality";
- "Apps";
- "Notifications";
- « Date and time » ;
- "Profiles and Accounts";
- « Security » ;
- « System » ;
- « Update & assistant » ;
- « Google[®] » ;

- ...

« Sound »

This menu can be used to set and adjust the following volume settings:

- « Media volume » ;
- "Incoming call volume";
- « Alarm volume » ;
- "Notifications volume";
- "Navigation volume";
- « Assistant volume » ;
- "Phone ringtone";
- ...

"Network and Internet"

When you use connection sharing on your phone, you are using your phone's Internet connection via the WIFI connection (subject to charges and limitations imposed by your mobile operator).



SYSTEM SETTINGS



This menu can be used to configure the following internet networks:

- "Access point":
 - enable/disable "Access point";
 - access point details;
 - activate/deactivate the access point automatically;
 - ...
- « WIFI » :
 - activate/deactivate the "WIFI" on the multimedia system for using a remote internet access point;
 - view available networks;
 - "Add a network".
- "WIFI settings"
- "Connectivity" provides information on:

- connectivity data and status;
- on "Network type";
- system ID;
- ...

When you activate the multimedia system "WIFI", you are notified of its status via the icon on the status bar:

t "WIFI" activated and connected to a network without a limited connection;

- 2 "WIFI" activated and connected to a network but without any internet access or with a limited connection;

- **3** "WIFI" activated but not connected to a network.

Note: if "WIFI" is deactivated, no WIFI icon will appear on the status bar.

You can also see information on the data sharing status by pressing the icon on the status bar:

- 4 "Accept all", share all data;
- 5 "Refuse all": does not share any of the data;
- **6** "Customise", share only the data that you have authorised.

For more information on data sharing, please refer to the section on "Activating services" → 10. **Note:** if you refuse to share data, no icon will appear in the status bar.

« Bluetooth® »

This menu can be used to adjust the multimedia system Bluetooth® functions:

- activate/deactivate the multimedia system "Bluetooth®";
- « Pair new device ».

"Location"

This menu can be used to adjust the vehicle location settings:

- "Recent location requests";
- "App permissions".

« Applications »

Use this menu to configure the multimedia system applications:

- "Display all apps";
- "Default apps";
- "App permissions";

- "Specific access rights granted to apps";

"Notifications"

Use this menu to configure the multimedia system notifications:

- « Proactive recommendations ».

SYSTEM SETTINGS

« Date and time »

This menu can be used to adjust the date and time on the multimedia system:

- "Set the time zone automatically";
- "Set the time zone" (manually);
- "Use the 24-hour format".

"Profiles and accounts"

Gives access to the multimedia system profile menu.

« Security »

This menu can be used to adjust the multimedia system security settings:

- "Lock the profile";
- "Delete ID";
- "Security update".

« System »

This menu can be used to adjust the multimedia system settings:

- "Language and input";
- "Units" (km/h or mph);

Note: the speedometer and some of the distance information displayed on the instrument panel are converted. To return to the previous mode, repeat the same operation.

- "Storage":
 - "Music and audio";
 - "Other apps";
 - "Files";
 - « System ».
- "About";
- "Legal information";
- "Resetting options";

- ...

« Update & assistant »

This menu allows you to consult and/or configure the following functions:

- "Proactive suggestions";

For more information, please refer to the "Notifications" → 111 section.

- « My trusted device »;
- « Vehicle update » ;

For more information, please refer to the "Update" → 113 section.

- ...

« Google® »

This menu can be used to adjust the Google[®] services:

- « Google Assistant » ;
- "Send comments to Google®".

« My trusted device »

This menu allows you to adjust the smartphone associated with the user profile via "My Companion".

For more information, please refer to the "User settings" → 104 section.

NOTIFICATIONS

Notification centre



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.







The Notifications centre provides notifications during driving as well as certain functions, suggestions and settings such as:

- access to the user "Profile" 3;

- the status of services **B**:
 - activate/deactivate the WIFI;
 - activate/deactivate the Bluetooth[®];
 - mute/unmute the sound.



 shortcuts to the vehicle equipment and screen brightness controls *C*;

Note: the availability of shortcuts and command types depends on the equipment and cannot be modified.

the list of notifications received
 D;

- recently used apps;

- ...

By pressing button *t* or by quickly swiping the multimedia screen vertically from zone *A* towards the centre of the screen, you can access the Notifications centre in order to view the notifications and available functions.

When an unread notification is available, an arrow **2** will appear in the middle of button **1**.

By pressing 2, you will automatically open the Notifications centre and be able to read any unread

NOTIFICATIONS

notifications, then the symbol will disappear.

Once the Notifications centre is open, select a notification from the list **D** to access it.

You can delete the notification by performing a guick horizontal swipe on the screen.

To delete all notifications, press button 5.

Note: some notifications will need a required action to be completed in order to be deleted from the notification centre.

To exit the notification centre, press 1 or swipe up quickly from the bottom of the screen towards the centre of the screen.

Notification settings

From the "Settings" icon 4 or the

"Vehicle" world "Settinas" menu, vou can access the "Apps and notifications" menu.

Use this menu to configure the multimedia system notifications.

For more information on the "Apps and notifications" menu, please refer to the "System settings" section **→ 108**.

« Proactive suggestions »

The "Proactive suggestions" function informs you via a notification that a "DRIVE MODE" mode more adapted to your current driving is available.

The multimedia system suggests the following options:

- «Yes»:
- « No » ;
- « Always no ».

From the "Settings" icon **2** or



the "Vehicle" world "Settings" menu, you can access the "Updates and Assistant" menu, then "Proactive suggestions".

This menu can be used to configure the proactive recommendation notifications on the multimedia system.

Note: vou must enable data sharing in order to use the "Proactive suggestions", for more information please refer to the section on "Activating services" → 10.

UPDATE

"Vehicle update" menu



Some update installations may render your vehicle temporarily unavailable for use. If so, please refer to the indications displayed on the screen.



The vehicle must be immobilised, stationary and the ignition switched off. In some cases. you will not be able to start your vehicle for the duration indicated by the multimedia system.



For safety reasons, carry out these operations when the vehicle is stationary.



Before starting the installation, park the vehicle far away from traffic and apply the parking brake.

From the "Vehicle" world the "Vehicle" menu, "Settings", "Update δ assistant" then select "Vehicle update".

This menu can be used to display different types of information and to update your vehicle, for example:

- multimedia equipment;
- driving aids;

- ...

The system may offer updates automatically. You can also check for updates manually, depending on your vehicle's connectivity.

The "Vehicle update" screen



- 1. « Checking for update ».
- 2. « Update in progress ».
- 3. « Update history ».
- 4. « Information ».

Note:

- vou will be notified via Notifications if an update is available. Please refer to section on "Notifications" \rightarrow 111:

- if an update is available, the download will start automatically; - updates can only be searched for and downloaded if your vehicle is located in a aeoaraphical area covered by a mobile network. For more information, refer to the section on "System settings" \rightarrow 108;

UPDATE

- if the update is not available in the country where the vehicle is located, the "Checking for update" and "Update in progress" menus are unavailable.



When an update installation is ready, your agreement and confirmation will be requested in order to complete the installation.

To start the update, all the conditions displayed on the multimedia system screen A must be met.

Follow the instructions shown on the multimedia system screen.

Note:

- depending on the update, the screens may be switched off;

- some installations require you to exit and lock your vehicle.

Upon restarting of the multimedia system, a message is displayed to confirm that the update has been successfully completed.

In the event of an error, please refer to the section on "Operating faults"→ 116.

« Checking for update »1

You can also search for updates directly by pressing "Checking for update" *1*.

After searching the multimedia system, you can access the next update if available.

Follow the instructions shown on the multimedia system screen.

Updating may take several days but during this time you will be able to use your vehicle normally.

« Update in progress » 2

This menu is accessible when an update is available.

When an update is in progress,

press the "Information" icon to access the update content information. **Note:** when a "Update in progress" is unavailable, the "Checking for update" is not accessible.

« Update history » 3

This menu can be used to view the update history and status.

To find information on previous updates, select an update.

« Information » 4

This menu allows you to access information related to updates, to view the "VIN" (vehicle identification number), etc.

Special features related to electric vehicles

Updating will render your vehicle temporarily unavailable and the charging function is inhibited during installation of the update.

UPDATE

If you have just accepted a system update via the multimedia system, the traction battery charging will be delayed or cancelled. Wait for the update to be completed before connecting the charging lead to the vehicle.

Do not start charging the vehicle during installation of your vehicle update.

Follow the instructions that are displayed on the multimedia system screen.

Note:

- The updates cannot be installed while the vehicle is charging using direct current (DC). If an update is in progress, it will be necessary to wait for the end of it before starting the DC vehicle charging. However, if charging is in progress the update can be started but it will only take place once the charging is finished;

- if an update is initiated before/ during the alternating current (AC) vehicle charging, the latter will be interrupted and will resume automatically once the update is complete.

For more information, please refer to the "Electric vehicle: charging" section in your vehicle user manual.

System

System			
Description	Causes	Solutions	
No image is displayed.	The screen is on standby.	Ensure that the screen is not on standby.	
The screen is frozen.	The system memory is saturated.	Restart the system by pressing and holding: - the multimedia stop/start button (press and hold until the system restarts); or - the "Mode" button and the "Source" button on the left-hand side of the steering column control (press and hold until the system restarts).	
The camera is displayed on the screen incorrectly.	The camera is covered in dirt that obscures the lens.	Check that there is no mud or dirt on the camera.	
No sound can be heard.	The volume is set to minimum or pause.	Increase the volume or deactivate pause.	
No sound comes from the left, right, front or rear speakers.	The Balance or fader settings are in- correct.	Adjust the sound Balance or fader correctly.	
The connected services in my "My Alpine" app do not work.	Poor multimedia system/telephone Internet network reception. Synchronisation problem with the My Alpine service.	Move the vehicle and the phone to an area covered by the Internet net- work.	

System			
	If there is still a problem, contact an approved dealer.		
bscription is suspended. ultimedia system's internet ction is no longer available.	Check the status of your subscrip- tion on the portal of the internet provider accessible from your "My Alpine" account contract page (you must first connect to your "My Alpine" account in your vehicle). Use your phone's "Access point and connection sharing" function to ac-		
	Jbscription is suspended. Nultimedia system's internet ection is no longer available.		

Navigation

Navigation			
Description	Causes	Solutions	
The vehicle position on the screen does not match its actual location or the GPS warning light on the screen remains grey or yellow.	Incorrect positioning of the vehicle caused by GPS reception.	Move the vehicle until reception of the GPS signal is improved.	
Traffic flow information is not displayed on the screen.	Guidance has not been activated. Connected services are not activat- ed.	Ensure guidance is activated. Select a destination and begin the guid- ance. Check that the connected services are activated and activate data col- lection.	
some items on the menu are not available.	Depending on the current command, some items will be unavailable. Some functions are not available while the vehicle is moving.	Stop the vehicle.	
Voice guidance is unavailable.	Voice guidance or guidance is deac- tivated.	Increase the volume. Ensure voice guidance is activated. Check that guidance is in progress.	
The suggested route does not start or end at the required destination.	The destination is not yet recog- nised by the system.	Enter a road near to the required destination.	

Phone

Phone			
Description	Causes	Solutions	
No sounds or ringtone can be heard.	The mobile phone is not connected to the system. The volume is set to minimum or pause.	Ensure that the mobile phone is con- nected to the system. Increase the volume or deactivate pause.	
Impossible to make a call.	The mobile phone is not connected to the system. The phone keypad has been locked.	Ensure that the mobile phone is con- nected to the system. Unlock the phone keypad.	
CarPlay™ or Android Auto™ replica- tion is not operating.	The telephone is not connected or is not compatible with the system.	Check the compatibility of the tele- phone with these applications. Check that the telephone is properly connected to the system.	

7

Voice recognition

Voice recognition			
Description	Causes	Solutions	
The system does not recognise the voice command stated.	The voice command has not been recognised. The voice recognition time delay has expired. The voice recognition cannot oper- ate properly due to a noisy environ- ment.	Check that voice control is available (refer to the information on "Using voice recognition"). → 21). Speak within the voice recognition time de- lay. Speak in a quiet environment.	

Update

Update			
Description	Causes	Solutions	
Downloading the new SW (software) takes a very long time.	Poor reception of the Internet net- work. The download requires a minimum driving time.	Move the vehicle to an area covered by the Internet network. Carry out additional driving phases.	
The update completion is never re- quested.	The vehicle is not secured.	Check that the vehicle is properly stopped (parking brake applied).	
Screens are off, loss of sound, loss of some functions during the up-date.	The update is in progress.	Wait for updating to end.	
The request to complete the update does not appear.	No response in the month following the beginning of the update.	The server will restart the operation later. You can manually check if the update is still available.	
The update was not completed.	Updating system internal error: the other functions are not affected. Incompatibility with direct current charging (specific to electric vehi- cles).	Consult an approved Dealer. Wait until the update is complete before performing a direct current charge. For more information on the warn- ing lights, please refer to the vehicle user manual.	
The update failed to complete due to an error and the STOP warning light is displayed.	Critical error.	The vehicle must not be restarted. Call an approved dealer. For more information on the warn- ing lights, please refer to the vehicle user manual.	

Update			
The update failed to complete due to an error and the \bigcirc warning light is displayed.	Error during updating (non-critical).	Contact an approved dealer to re- solve the issue. For more information on the warn- ing lights, please refer to the vehicle user manual.	

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

Α

Address: home, 32 Address: work, 32 Adjust the sound volume, 66 Air quality, 97 Android AutoTM, CarplayTM, 21, 50, 69 Answer a call, 59

В

Bluetooth[®], 50 Buttons, 8, 14

С

Call log, 62 Call waiting, 59 Configuration of the multimedia system, 104 Connected services, 10 Connecting a telephone, 56 Controls, 8, 14 Customising the settings, 19, 19, 20, 104

D

Dial number, 59, 63 Disconnect a phone, 56 Display 2D/3D: modes 2D/3D, 27 Display on the instrument panel, 27 DRIVE MODE, 87 drive USB, 50 Driving aids, 78

Ε

ECO driving, 95 Emergency call, 103 End a call, 59, 60 Energy saving, 95 Enter a number using the keypad, 63 Environment, 95

G

Google Assistance™, 21, 59 Google Maps™, 21, 27, 32, 40 Google Play ™, 73 Guidance: map, 27

н

Hands-free parking, 83

Μ

Map: display, 27 Map: map icons, 27 Map: settings, 27 Menu: home page, 19, 19, 20 Mobile phonebook, 61 Multimedia equipment, 5 Multimedia screen, 5

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

Music, 50 My Alpine, 75

Ν

Navigation: entering a destination, 32 Navigation: navigation history, 32 Navigation: navigation settings, 40 Navigation system, 27 Notifications: suggestions and notifications, 15, 111

0

Operating faults, 116, 119, 120, 121

Ρ

Pair a phone, 55 Parking distance control, 83 Personal data: saving, 10, 55, 61 Phone settings: phone ringtone, 63, 66 Point of Interest, 32

R

Radio: automatic storage of stations, 46 Radio: station pretuning, 46 Radio select a station: listen to the radio, 46 Receiving a call, 59 Reject a call, 59 Reversing camera, 86 Reversing camera activation: guide lines, 86 Reversing camera settings: image settings, 86

S

Screen: menu. 5 Screen: standby, 18 Screen controls, 8 Settinas, 66, 108 Settings: customisation, 108 Settings: navigation, 40 smartphone replication, 21, 69 SMS, 64 SMS: reading SMS, 64 SMS: receiving SMS, 64 Soft buttons, 5 Source, 50 Source: audio. 44 Start the multimedia system, 18 Steering wheel controls and panels, 8 Switching off, 18 System: updating, 113

Т

Tyre pressure, 94

U

Unpairing a telephone, 55

ALPHABETICAL INDEX

۷

Vehicle ambience: customisation, 90 Vehicle customisation settings, 104 Voice controls, 21 Voice message(s), 63 Voice recognition, 21

W

Wifi, 69, 108 Wireless charger: induction charging, 67, 67, 68



SOCIÉTÉ DES AUTOMOBILES ALPINE, SA par actions simplifiée à associé unique AVENUE DE BREAUTE, 76200 DIEPPE - SIRET 662 750 074 / SITE INTERNET : alpinecars.com

NW 1623-2 - 77 11 417 841 - 10/2024 - Edition anglaise



